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I. KEY ENTITY INFORMATIONAIYD MANAGEMENT

a) Backgroundinformation

Child Welfare Society of Kenya is a membership Society underthe Society's Act, with an irrevocable

Trust for the care, protection, welfare and adoption of children. lt is the National Adoption Society

for Kenya and the National Emergency Response, Welfare and Rescue Organization for children. The

Society is a body corporate, established and gazetted in 1955 as an approved society Gazette Notice

No. 1768 of 2711211955, an exempt society gazette notice 1536 of 04/ll/1955, Certifrcate of

Exemption number 455 and the adoption society for Kenya" Gazette Notice No. 1356 of2810411969.

lt is an exempt society with permanent trustees of public nature, with an irrevocable Trust of 1970.

The entity is domiciled in Kenya and has fifteen Temporary Places of Safety (TPS) countrywide.i.e.

CWSK Mama Ngina Kenyatta, CWSK Mji wa Salama, CWSK Kisii, CWSK Kanduyi, CWSK Arap

Moi, CWSK foster families and group homes, CWSK Nanyuki, CWSK Embu, CWSK Isiolo and

CWSK Murang'a-

b) PrincipalActivities

l. To respond to all emergencies affecting children in Kenya and rescue children in emergency

situations.

2. To rcscue, receive and provide care to children in need of care and protection.

3. To provide family tracing and re unification services for separated children.

4. To facilitate alternative family care (adoption, foster care and guardianship) ofchildren.

5. To strengthen, rehabilitate and empower families to promote quality care ofchildren.

6. To provide education, vocational skills to vulnerable children and young persons.

7. To build the capacity ofduty bearers, right holders and provide institutional strenglhening in order

to effectively ensure the welfare ofchildren.

8. To provide quality temporary care to rescued children by upgrading/establishing temporary places

ofsafety including child care facilities, group homes, foster care homes, child rescue centres, child

protection units as may be considered necessary and in the best interest of the child.

9. To ensure care and protection for Orphans and Vulnerable children without families through

facilitating or /and providing shelter, education health food and nutrition.

u
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c) StrategicObjectives

The objective and purpose of CWSK is 'to provide a legal and institutional framework for the care,

control, protection, welfare and adoption ofchildren through the establishment ofthe Child Welfare

Society of Kenya".

CWSK is an exempt Society; it is a special vehicle of the Govemment to deliver its mandate for the

welfare, relief and emergency r€sponse for children. Its target group includes children and infants.

According to the nature ofwork, we focus on the best interests ofthe child, which is ofparamount

importance and consideration as guided by the Constitution Article 53 (2) "A child's besl

interests are of paramounl imporlance in ever! matt concerning the child",

lll
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Children Act (4) "In all actions concerning children, whether undertaken by public or private social

welfare instilutions, courts of law, administrative authorities or legislative bodies, the best interests

of the child shall be a primary consideralion"

The CWSK decision-making Organs are as it is in the CWSK Conslitution.

d) Kcy Decision Making Orgen

The Society's day-to{ay management is under the following key organs:

o Patron

r Board of Trustees

o Board of Directors

o Chief Executive Ofticer/Managing Trustee

. Secretariat

e) FiduciaryManagement

The key management personnel who held office during the financial year ended 306 June 2023 and

who had direct fiduciary responsibility were:

No. Designation Ncme

I CEO / Managing Trustee Irene Mureithi

2 Head of Finance Charles Maina

J Head of Human Resource Marcella Obaga

4 Intemal Audit Floriana Maganga

5 Head of Programmes Penelope W. lrmaron

6 Social Protection Officer Martin Mwebia

7 Education and Skills Development Jerusha Chepsat

8 Management Accountant Henry Kagondu

9 Finance Manager Lucy Boit
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f) EntityHecdqurrter's

Child Welfare Society of Kenya

P.O. Box 43982-00100

Child Welfare Building
Langata Road

Nairobi, Kenya

il Entity Contrctg

Telephone :(020) 6003301i6O06391 (254) 072629t921

E-mail : cwrktotot0childwelfrncmril.co.ke

Website:@

h) Entity Bankers

Equity Bank Limited
P O Box 439E2-00100
Nairobi, Kenya

Sidian Bank Limited
P O Box 2536340603
Nairobi, Kenya

Bank of Africa Group BMCE Bank
P O Box 43982
Nakurq Kenya

Bank of Baroda
P O Box 30033{0100
Nairobi

Absa Bank Kenya
P O Box27518-00506
Nairobi, Kenya

Cooperative Bank Limited
P O Box 48231{0100
Nairobi

Diamond Trust Bank
P O Box 6l7l l-00200
Nairobi

National Bank of Kenya Limited
P O Box 578-80100
Mombasa, Kenya
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9 Standard Chartercd Limited
P O Box 90170-80100
Mombasa, Kenya

f0. Kenya Commercial Bank ofKenya
P O Box 4&400401fi)
Bungoau, Kcnya

11. Family Bank of Kenya
P O Box 74145-00200
Nairobi

Irdcpcrdlrt Ardtor
Auditor Geroral

Officc of thc Aditor Gencral

Anniversary Towers, Univenity Way

P.O. Box 3ffiM-00100 GPO

Naimbi, Kenya
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2 THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

1. Joseph Gitau, HSC Mr. Citau is is the Chairman of Child Welfare Society of Kenya.

He holds a Master of Arts (MA) Degree in Sociology (with

emphasis in Criminology, Justice, Administration, Probation and

Parole), Fordham University, New York, USA.

He was a director of Probation and After Care Services. Among

other achievemenls, Mr. Gitau has been a lecturer at Egerton

University and Muranga University, he also taught at the Kenya

Institute of Administration and was awarded the Head of State

Commendation (HSC). He is also an expert in forensic Science.

Mr. Gitau is a Life Member of Child Welfare Society of Kenya.

2. Hon.Nathan Munoko Hon. Munoko has been a Trustee of Child Welfare Society of

Kenya(CWSK) lrom 1982 to date. He previously served as a

member and Treasurer of CWSK Bungoma Branch. He was the

Minister for Public Works from 1975 to 1979 and an Assistant

Minister in three Ministries Namely Co-operatives and Social

Services. Local Government and Agriculture.

He has served on various Commissions and in various sectors

including the political, govemment, administrative and education

sectors.

3. Hon. Tiya Galgalo

It

Hon.Tiya Galgalo is a seasoned public administrator and an

educationist commisioner. She holds a Masters in Educational

Administration and Planning lrom the University of Nairobi, and

also a Bachelors in Education from Kenyatta University. She has

vast experience in Consultancy work in Research, Covemance,

and Education among others. In addition to that, she is a champion

for Disaster Risk Reduction (DRR), Governance & Gender,

Monitoring & Evaluation and Resource Mobilization.

vl!
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,1. Bill Rutto Bill Rutto is a life member of CWSK since 2003 and currently

serves as a member of CWSK Board of Trustees (BOT). Bill holds

a Master of Science (MSc) degree in governance and an

associateship of the Chartered Institute of Bankers (ACIB). He

has a keen interest in child protection, and for many years was

involved in promoting CWSK work as a volunteer, including

fundraising. Bill is also an award-winning author (Jomo Kenyatta

Prize for Literature, 2005) for his book that focuses on the youth

vis-d-vis challenges of drug abuse. The book is a "class reader"

for Kenyan and Rwandan secondary schools.

5. Joseph Gichuru Mr. Joseph Gichuru is a Tnrstee of the CWSK Board of Trustee

and was previously the National Chairman and Nakuru Branch

Chairman in Child Welfare Society of Kenya. He is also a Life

Govemor of Agricultural Society of Kenya.

Previously, he served as Agricultural Society of Kenya Nakuru

Branch Chairman, National Council Member of Agricultural

Society of Kenya, Chairman of the Editorial Board, Kenya

Farmers Magazine and Chairman of the Board of Trustees, Rift

Valley Provincial General Hospital, among others.

6. Irene Mureithi

I

lrene is the Chief Executive Ofticer,Managing Trustee of Child
Welfare Society of Kenya. She was the Joint Secretary and
Technical Advisor to the Expert/Steering Committee to Review
the Framework for Child Adoption in Kenya; Member of the
Project Implementation Committee of the Inter-Agency Steering
Committee to Fast-Track Implementation of Govemment Priority
Development Projecs Including Development Partner Financial
Projects & Member of the National Multi-Disciplinary
Committee to Coordinate the Development of the Social Workers
Biil.
Irene is a leading professional of long standing in Social Work.
She is also an Orphans and Vulnerable Children (OVC) specialist
who has initiated several programmes for OVC interventions.
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3. MANAGEMENT TEAM

Irene Mureithi:
Masters Course in Education,

Psychology, B.A. HONS

Social Work.

Chief Executive Officer,Managing

Trustee

CPA Charles Maina:
CPA(K)

Head of Finance

Marcella Obaga:

B.A Human Resource

il

Head of Human Resource

Senior Child Protection Oflicer - In

Charge of Programmes

Penelope W. Lemaron:
MBA, Project Mgt,BA HONS

Social work
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CPA Maganga S. Floriana

CPA(K)

Internal Auditor

CPA Henry IC Kagondu:

CPA(K), B.Sc.(IBA)

Management Accountant

CPA Lucy Boit:
CPA(K), MBA
(Finance.),
B-Commerce

Finance Manager

Jerusha Chepsat:
Bachelor of Arts in Public
Admin in Sociology
Diploma in Social Work

Education and Skills Development

x



Child lYelfare Society of Kenya
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2023

4. CIHIRMAN'S STATEMENT

The financial year 202212023 has been a success and we thank God for all that the Child Welfare
Society of Kenya (CWSK) has achieved.

In undertaking its role, the Board of Trustees ofCWSK has continued to provide policy direction and
oversight of the Society in line with its Mission and Vision. The Board has proactively played its role
of securing the Society's properties and assets, all in the best interest of children.

The Board is grateful to the members ofthe Society across the country for their continued support
and contribution towards the achievement of CWSK objectives. The Board also appreciates the
partnership and good working relationship between the Society and the Govemment through the
Ministry of Labour and Social Protection. This reinforces our shared role and responsibility of
ensuring that children are well protected.

As the Board of Trustees, we acknowledge and appreciate all the members and staffof the Society
for their determination, commitment and efforts that have made it possible for the CWSK to achieve
its objectives. The Secretariat has worked relentlessly and tirelessly to provide services to children
and vulnerable young persons. During the period, 539,194 children and vulnerable young persons
were reached. The Board commits to continue providing welfare services to children as CWSK has
been doing since 1955.

The Board ofTrustees also acknowledges the wonderful role that was played by one ofour members,
Madam Haida Bruno, who passed on during the period. She was a dedicated member, committed,
supportive and very passionate about children. She fought hard for the rights ofchildren and ensured
that the Society remained strong to protect children. She was instrumental in securing the properties
of the Society and providing leadership whenever called upon. Her contribution to the Society shall
not be forgotten.

As we cross to another financial year, the Board of Trustees remains committed to providing policy
direction to the organisation as it has done in the past 67 years thus ensuring that the best intercst of
the child is served-

God bless CWSK

Signed by:

MR JOSEPH GITAU

CHAIRMAN, BOARD OF TRUSTEES

DATE:.....
g:4,lyrl2p.?tt
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5. CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER/MANAGING TRUSTEE REPORT

We are grateful to God for according us yet another year to serve the most vulnerable children and
families across the country.

The year has been remarkable, and in efforts to enhance child protection, CWSK reached 539,194
children through its various interventions and programmes. Such interventions entailed prevention of
family separation through psycho-social and education support, emergency response, rescue of
children in distress, family tracing and reintegration, altemative family care (foster care, guardianship
and adoption), family empowerment, capacity building, child participation, counselling, mediation
and other welfare interventions including prevention ofchild trafficking, HIV prevention, adolescent
health reproduction, and child labour. These were in addition to capacity building and OVC (Orphans
and Vulnerable Children) protection services at the Temporary Places ofSafety.

Most notable is the number of children reached through Emergency Response and Preparedness
Programme, which increased from 94,322 children in FY 202112022 to 130,623 children in FY
202212023. This is attributed to intensified interventions in schools as many children were affected
by the ravaging draught and hard economic challenges. The counties most affected and whose schools
and communities CWSK supported were Baringo, Turkana, Marsabit, lsiolo, Murang'a and Nairobi.
These interventions served in combating infant mortality, promoting health and nuhition, and
provision of food to children and families.

Under the Education Programme, CWSK reached 141,689 children through education support by
paying school fees and levies as well as support with education materials including uniform, back to
school shopping items, shoes, stationery, among others. The Society wgeted the hard-to-reach
children and vulnerable young persons. This promoted school retention and attendance hence
affirming the right to education for every child. The Society also supported over 260 vulnerable young
persons to join the National Youth Service (NYS) for skill development that is useful for their future
and also, mould them into responsible adults forNation building. The vulnerable young persons were
supported with track suits, personal items, boxes, among others to enable them join the service.

To promote care and protection of children in families, CWSK reached 17,755 children through
rescue, family tracing and reunification services as well as 2,433 children through altemative family
care (foster care, guardianship and adoption) services. Through these interventions, the children
reached will be entitled to parental care, protection, right to identity and security within their families.
This is ideal for their wholesome development and is also in their best interest.

CWSK also maintained the on-going lntegrated Child and Family Centres (projects) at the temporary
places of safety. The centres are aimed at promoting the welfare of the rescued vulnerable children
and also serve children at the community level through provision of health care, counselling,
education, developmental needs and other welfare services.

The Society took part in the development ofthe Children Act 2022 and contributed towards making
notable inclusions such as the Child fund, role ofcounty govemment in child protection, the conduct
ofalternative family care placement, among others.

During the period, CWSK was allocated and received Kshs. 1,223,836,000. These funds were
utilized in providing services to children and families under various programmes; and also, in the
running of the Society. CWSK continues to implement programmes to ensure care, protection and

xtl
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welfhre of children as per its mandate. This is in line with the Mission of the Society "to promote and
secure the rights of children and vulnerable young persons in order for them to realize their full
potential".

CWSKACHIEVf,MENTS IN THE FY 2022.2023 UNDER PROGRAMMES

CWSK Achieves Key Milestones in 2022-2023 FY

Duringthe2022-2023 financial year, the Child Welfare Society of Kenya (CWSK) achieved a number
of milestones under its various programmes.

Here are the highlights of some of the significant achievements made during this period:

- llz,lE2 OVCs (Orphans and Vulnerable Children) and vulnerable young people outside the
Cash Transfer Programme were provided with psychosocial support (food, education,
clothing, health and shelteQ.

- 125,925 families and children were given psycho-social support (PSS) services (food,
clothing, shelter, counselling and family mediation) to ensure quality care for children.

- Children in emergencies were protected and supported, with 130,623 children and families
getting PSS services (food, clothing, shelter, counselling and family mediation). This ensured
quality care for children.

- 128,456 children in schools affected by emergencies were provided with complementary
education materials. The children were given food (maize, beans, lentils, rice and cooking oil,
among others), soap and education materials such as stationery.

- 7,113 children were supported with complementary education materials including stationery,
school uniforms, shoes and school bags, among others

,rEtfli.\r
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In addition, CWSK also did the following:

Paid school fees and levies for 6,llE OVCs and young persons at the temporary places of
safety where they stayed and within communities.

Withdrew and prevented 5,404 children from being engaged in child labour.

1,007 parents whose children were in, or at the risk of child labour were identified, trained
and empowered with income generating activities.

1,031 foster and adoptive parents were reached, assessed and children were placed with the
eligible cases.

I,165 foster and adoptive parents were trained on childcare, altemative family care and
parenting.

17,755 separated children were provided with rescue services and family tracing services
through identification, documentation,tracing and re-unification (IDTR).

45560 duty bearers were sensitised and trained on OVC protection and 48 local children
protection community structures for OVC protection were established or strengthened.

Children participation was promoted through strengthening the capacity of 5t79 children in
identiSing their needs and solutions.

Achievements mrde under CWSK Programmes

l. 13 Temooreru Pleces of Safetv

CWSK has thirteen temporary places of safety countrywide. These are CWSK MamaNgina Kenyatta
in Nairobi, CWSK Mji wa Salama in Mombasa, CWSK Kisii, CWSK Kanduyi, CWSK Arap Moi in
Nakuru, three CWSK foster families and group homes, CWSK Nanyuki, CWSK Embu, CWSK
Isiolo, CWSK Murang'a and CWSK lodwar Transitional Centre. Through these programmes,
CWSK rescues and offers shelter and safe houses for children in need of temporary care and
protection. Further, CWSK provides psychosocial support to the children at the temporary places of
safety.

xtv
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While at the temporary places ofsafety, the children, especially the babies, are taken care ofby nurses

and other professionals who ensure that the babies and other children's health is assured. Forexample.
at any given time, there are at least fwo nurses, a nulritionist, nurse aides and a clinical officer and
occupational therapists. Immediately after rescue, children are screened to ensure they receive
adequate and appropriate healthcare. Being the national emergency response and rescue organisation
for children, CWSK always ensures rescued children are provided with all the basic needs.

The children receive proper nutrition, including adequate ration for each child, through the technical
support of the nutritionists. Two of the temporary places of safety have healthcare facilities which
cater for the medical needs ofthe children housed there. In addition, the health centres are open to the
local community whose members frequent the facilities for healthcare services. There is an ambulance
that provides emergency services at the CWSK temporary places of safety and also at the local
community level. CWSK has been providing medical support to address the health needs ofchildren
in the temporary places of safety and has also been financially supporting children at the community
level to access specialised medical care in other medical facilities.

Slalus of achievemenls undet the Temporary Places oJ Safety

- CWSK also provided psychosocial support to children at the temporary places of safety and

networked with other charitable children's institutions to offer services to the children and
ensure their reintegration into their families and communities.

- CWSK's temporary places of safety have an average annual tumover of 1,500 children.

Photo l: CWSK Mama Ngina Kenyalla TPS, Nairobi, one of CWSK's lemporary places oJ safely
(TPS). The facilily provides care and prolection lo separaled and vulnerable children relerred by
the police, adminislralion, children's oflices, lhe Judiciary, hospitals and olher duty bearers.
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2. Raoid Response snd Rescue of children in distress

CWSK implements rapid response and children rescue services across the country through its well-
established branches that reach all the 47 counties. Whenever a case ofa lost child, child abuse,

abandonment or exposure to detrimental risk comes to our attention, CWSK responds immediately
and rescues the child(ren) to temporary care and protection as interventions are made to reunite the
child with their family or provide altemative family care where necessary. Some of these cases are

referred to CWSK by the police, courts, hospitals, children ofticers, chiefs, other govemment
departments and the public.

Stalas of Rapid Response and Rescue of chitdnn programme

- lnthe2022l2023 financialyear, 125E2 children were provided with rescue services, including
psychosocial support, at CWSK temporary places of safety and networking institutions.

Eryected oulcomes ol the Rapid Response and Rescue of children progrumme

- Reduced infant mortality

- Increased protection ofchildren in need ofcare and protection

- Provision ofhousing and accommodation

- Provision ofquality temporary care for children

' Significant positive change in the lives ofthe rescued children

- Protection ofthe rights ofthe rescued children as provided for under Section 53 ofthe Kenyan
Constitution

3. Emereency Preoaredness snd Response

CWSK is the National Emergency Response and Rescue Organisation for children and thus has been
undertaking this programme since inception to ensure the welfare of children and vulnerable youth.
The programme focuses on addressing child protection concems and ensuring protection ofchildren
during emergencies like drought, floods, fire, collapse ofbuildings, terror attacks, ethnic conflicts and
violence among others.

To ensure the provision of healthcare, shelter, housing, food, basic education and protection as

enshrined in the Constitution, CWSK responds to any emergency that may arise in any part of the
country and provides psychosocial support to children affected by emergencies and their families. In
responding to these emergencies, CWSK focuses on ensuring that children are not separated from
their families. CWSK identifies, documents and conducts family tracing and reunification for
separated children during emergencies. The children receive child-specific food, counselling services
to prevent trauma, educational support items, clothing and temporary care where necessary, among
others. In addition, CWSK builds the capacity of the local community structures and local community
members to enable them protect children during emergencies and also establishes and/or strengthens
local community struchrres to enable them to respond to child protection in emergencies.
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CWSK also addresses food security under the emergency response prograrnme. The Society buys and
stocks cereals at a subsidised cost from the National Cereals and Produce Board. The cereals arc
stocked to ensure there is always food for children throughout the year, even during the drought
seasons. Other foodstuffs are stocked to ensure that children receive adequate food throughout the
year even when there is shortage of food in the market. The food is distributed to children affected by
drought in various counties in the country. The food support ensures that the children affected by
drought continue receiving quality food in the right quantities for proper grouth and development in
order to prevent malnutrition. It also ensures that the children are retained in school and, therefore,
prevent them from going to the streets in search of food.

-Y, ,1,r' -*
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Slalus ol achievernenls in emetgency preparedness and response progrunme

- f30,500 children in emergencies were provided with psycho-social support against a target of
125,fiXt. The children and families were provided with education suppor! food, clothing,

bedding, building materials and counselling.

- 128,45E children in schools affected by emergencies were provided with complementary
education materials.

- 123 children caught up in emergencies were provided with identification, documentation,
tracing, mediation and re-unification services on a need basis during emergency response,

against a target of 100.

Eryecled oatcomes

- Sigrrificant change in the lives of the children affected by emergencies after provision of
psycho-social support

- Incrcased admission and retention in the schools affected by emergencies

- lncreased awareness on issues affecting children in emergencies

- Increased protection ofchildren in emergencies

- Provision of adequate food and nuaition for food security

- Prevention of separation ofchildren from their families
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Photos 2 and 3: C|ISK truck drive past Loypat Village on their woy to Lodwa\ Tu*ana County,
lo delivet Iood supplies lo schools and communities. Photo I shows CYSX stulf disttibutkg
slationa cs lo children in schools within lhe count!. The area had been hit by draught due lofailed
rains.

Y^

Phoro 5: ChiUrca a, a school in Xwolc Coungt recetve loo4 cooktns oL sla oneries and chlld-
lriendly mcntorship boohs from CWSX" Thls is one of lhe schoob h the region thdt had been
afleclcd by &aughl utq as a rcsulr, chiurcn were not gohg to school Thc stEport by CWSX saw
an iaoeose h pupils' school aflendance and relcntion

4. Alternative Femilv Care

This programme is a Vision 2030 flagship project. Its overall goal is to increasingly realise a
conducive family and altemative Care for Children in Need of Special Protection (CNSP). Foster
care, adoption, and/or guardianship are the key components of the Altemative Family Care
programme. CWSK facilitates children to live and be cared for within families and communities.

Status of achievemenls in Alternaive Family Carc

- 1,031 foster and adoptive parents were assessed, tained and empowered, whereby eligible
cases were placed with children. This was against a target of 1,400.
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I,165 parents were trained on child care and alternative family care against a target of 1,000.

Case follow-ups were undertaken, reaching 134 cases against a target of 120 cases. This
ensured child protection within families.

103 court reports for children were prepared and filed out ofa target of 100.

E4tecled outcomes

- An increased number ofchildren living in families.

- Deinstitutionalisation-reduction ofthe number ofchildren in institutions.

- Children are enjoying their right to be raised and be cared for in a family setup as stipulated
in the Children Act, Section 6(l) and Article 53(l) (e) ofthe Constitution.

5. Familv Counsellins. Mediation. Rehebilitation end Emoowerment

This programme aims at strengthening family relationships and enhancing their social and economic
capacity for them to effectively care and protect children. This is done through provision of
counselling, mediation, psychosocial support, rehabilitation and economic €mpowerment to families
for them to provide quality care for children.

Stolus of achievements in Family Counselling, Mediation, Rehabilitation, Empowermenl

- Psycho-social support (PSS) services (food, clothing, shelter, counselling, family mediation)
were provided to 125,925 families and children to ensure quality care for children. This was
against a target of 122,590 families.

- E62 families ofvulnerable children were identified, trained and empowered, against a target
of 1,000 families. There were concerted efforts, through capacity building, to prevent family
distress and to support families, bearing in mind that there were increased political activities
in preparation for the 2022 general elections.

Eryecled oulcomes

- Improved family relationships and parenting skills

- Improved economic livelihood for families

- Provision of quality care and protection for children by their families at the local community
level

- Improved health for children and families

- Decent affordable housing for families providing care to reunified children.

- Children enjoying their right to be raised in a family setup as stipulated in the Children Act,
Section 6(l) and in Article 53(l) (e ofthe Constitution.

- Strengthening of protection of children within families and communities.

- Upholding the rights ofchildren to remain in their families as provided for under Section 6(3)
of the Children Act and the United Nations Convention on the Rights of the Child (UNCRC)
preamble.
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Enhanced protection of children within families

Photo 6: Afamily rcceives supporl from C|ISK lo help them prumote lhe welfare of lheir children
The supporl included moltesses, blankels andJood (ntaize, beans and ndengu).

6 I-ncel- Resionel. rnd Internationel Frmilv Trrcins and Reunificction

This programme focuses on family tracing for children who are not aware ofthe whereabouts oftheir
parents or parents not aware of the whereabouts of their children. Family tracing is undertaken
through physical tracing, media (using local dailies) and social investigations. Once the family has
been traced, adequate psychosocial support is offered to the child and the family for successful
reunification and reintegration. This is done locally, regionally and internationally.

Slalus of achieverrrenls in Family Trucing and Reanijicalion Programme

Provided 5,170 separated children with family tracing services (ldentification, Docum€ntation,
Tracing and Re-unification - IDTR) through social investigations (physical tracing) and also by
placing their photos on in local dairies. This was against a target of5,000.

Expected outcomes

- Children enjoying their right to be raised in a family setup as stipulated in the Children Act
and the Constitution, Article 53( I ) (e).

- Protection of children is strengthened within families and communities.

- Upholding the right of children to remain in their families as provided for under the Children
Act and the LNCRC preamble

- Enhanced protection ofchildren within families
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Increased number ofchildren living in families

Deinstitutionalisation - reduction of the number of children in institutions, which is

detrimental to their general welfare.

Pholo 7: A CIYSK otflca poses for a phou wlth alamily du ag rciategration of lwo siblings. The

famlly wos given psych*social suppo atd a reunlfrculion *it conprblng of slalloaery, food,
multr e sse s on d blan kels.

Pholo E: CWSK social worhen ossbt a parent to pul a thumb prinl on documents dwing
rcunfuation wilh hcr lhrce children at the chilfuen's offrce in Buagoma County. The childten
werc amrrng 13 who had been rescued in Nahobi County followtng lhe closure of a childrea's
home The children's home was charyed with child tralfrchlng and child abuse.
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Photos 9,10 and II: Home at las A molher gladly receives a hug lrom her son du ng
reuniJicalion in Kiamba Coanty. The child had been lost and later placed in one of CWSK places
of safery, CJISK truced lhe chU\ ,r,olher and aho gave psycho-social supporl items to the Iamily
during th e re un ifi calio n.
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Pholo 12: One of CIYSK Media Trucing adverlisemenl in one oflhe local dairies during the period
in review. Media lracing b among several melhods thal Child llefore Sociely of Kenya uses in
trucing families of lost, separuted and missing children.
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7. Education and Skills Develooment

This programme is a Vision 2030 flagship project. The programme focuses on helping OVCs,
vulnerable young persons and other children access quality education and self-reliance skills training
through enhancing and strengthening early childhood development (ECD) programmes, providing
support towards education at all levels to all children in the l5 CWSK temporary places of safety and
at local community level, helping children and youth to access quality education and self-reliance
skills.

CWSK deals with the hard-to-reach children in different parts of the country. All children are treated
with equity regardless oftheir varied backgtounds and/or impairment. The children under the support
of CWSK are provided with direct support ofschool fees and levies, personal effects, stationery and
transport to school. Some are also given food and clothing. The programme focuses on children in
temporary places of safety and within the community.

Slalus of achievemenls in Education and S*ilk Developrncnl progrummc

- Supported children in education and skills development and they are now enjoying their right
to education as stipulated in the Children Act and Article 53(l) (b) ofthe Constitution.

- 7,113 children, out of a target of 6,890 children, were supported with complementary
education materials. These included stationery towels, school uniforms, shoes, school bags,
among others, to enable them continue with education.

- CWSK paid school fees and levies for 6,1lE OVCs and young persons at the temporary places
of safety and in the community, against a target of 6,059.
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1,007 parents whose children are under the education support programme were identified,
trained and empowered with income generating activities. This was against a target of 1,000.

CWSK also facilitated 260 vulnerable young persons to join the National Youth Service
(NYS). The youth who joined the NYS were given personal effects such as soap, shoe polish,

bathing towels and inner wears, metallic boxes, iron boxes, rubber shoes, tracksuits and t-
shirts, transport and other support.

Expected outcornes

- Protection ofthe rights ofthe children as provided for by Article 53 ofthe Constitution

- lncreased number ofchildren accessing education

- Increased positive self-esteem among the supported children

- Increased literacy levels for Kenyan citizens

- lncreased self-reliance and job creation

- Children out of school who have attained the age of majority have acquired life skills
important for their development.

- Children are now enjoying their right to education as stipulated in the Children Act and Article
53( I ) (b) of the Constitution.

- Job creation for the vulnerable youth who receive vocational skills training

- Reduction of risks of children getting separated from their families in search of education

- Reduction ofchances ofvulnerable children and the youth -
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especially those who find themselves in children's institutions in search ofeducation - getting
radicalised.
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Child Welfare Society of Kenya
commemorates Day Of The African
Child, distributing food and leaming
materials to 40 schools in Kwale and
Kilifi counties.

The agency is also offering psychosocial
support to the 9OOO learners hardest hit
by drought. SKBCniYetu
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Photo l3: A tweet showing one of lhe inlementions thal CIVSK was engaged in during the period
ander review. This was in Kwale and Kilifi counlies where CJVSK reached over 9,000 children in
the region. The children had been alfected by draughl, thus preventing them fiom adending schooL
CIYSK suppo ed schools in lhe region with cereals (maize, beans, thoroko, among others), cooking
oil, stationery and child-friendly menlorship materiab.
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Pholos l1 and I5: Aflhming the right to play. CWSK olftcers join children during plal as part of
learning. Children should be allowed time lo play, rclax and enjoy as this sli ulales to theit
physical and mental gtowlh.
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Photo 16: CITSK olJicers visit young petsons at the Nalional Youth Service (NYS) as part of
menlorship andfollow-up on their progress. Through this ptogrumme, CIISK supports vulnerable

louth wilh track suils, shoes, boxes, personal effecls and lrarrspotl, among olhers, as lhey join lhe
service. The NYS training enables them acquire useful skills, knowledge and discipline in their
fulure endeavours.

8. OVC Protection - Provision ofPsychosocial SuDDort

This programme seeks to enhance the quality ofcare, psychosocial support and provide counselling
and referral services for OVC in order to improve the care and quality oflife. Through the programme,
OVCs outside the family and other OVCs are provided with psychosocial support to enhance their
quality of life and protect them from exploitation.

Slatus of Achievemenls

- ll2,l82 OVCs and vulnerable young person's outside the Cash Transfer Programme were
provided with psvchosocial support (food, education. clothing, health & shelter). This was
against a target of I12,000.

Expecled outcomes

- Retention of children in families

- Enhanced protection of OVCs by duty bearers
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Significant positive change in the lives of the OVCs living outside the cash transfer
programme

Improved livelihoods for OVCs through life skills trainings.

Increased opportunities and resources for OVCs

Reduction ofchances ofvulnerable children and the youth getting radicalised, especially those

who find themselves in institutions in search of basic needs.

9. Child Labour

This programme aims at creating an enabling environment for child labour-free zones across the

country and providing psychosocial support to OVCs outside the family household. This includes

lobbying and advocating for policies and laws that promot€ a society free of child labour and

Commercial Sexual Exploitation of Children (CSEC), prevention and withdrawal of children from
situations ofchild labour, including CSEC, neglect, abuse and exploitation. Through this programme,

CWSK identifies, registers, rescues, rehabilitates, mediates families, traces and inte$ateyreunifies
these children with their families.

Stalus oJ Achievemenls

- Prevented and withdrew 5,404 children from child labour against a target of 4'500. The

children were involved in, or were at risk ofengaging in child labour and CSEC. They were

identified and provided with psychosocial support to go to school where they were retained.

- Contracts for l0 school-based social workers were renewed. Through the social workers, cases

of child labour in schools and at the community level were identified and relevant
interventions were made.

- 197 parents whose children are either in, or at the risk ofchild labour were identified,
trained and empowered with income generating activities.
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Expecled outcomes

- lmproved school environment

- Children were prevented from engaging in child labour

- Reduced number ofworking children

- Increased school enrolment and retention ofchildren

- Children protected from commercial sexual exploitation and from contracting HIV/AIDS

Photos I7 and IE: CIISK prevenls Child Labour by sensitising children in schools, thus promoling
school allendance and rclenlion. This in turn reduces the chances of children engaging in child
labour. CWSK also provides sanilary lowels to girls and also provides child friendly menlorship
malerials lo enable children atlend school.
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10. Capacity Buildine and Institutional Strensthenins

This programme aims at strengthening the institutional and technical capacity of duty bearers to
provide improved services to OVCs and enhance their protection. Through this programme, CWSK
sensitises professionals directly dealing with the care of OVCs, the police. Ieachers. judges and
magistrates, chiefs and hospital staff. These people are involved at one point or another in the care of
OVCs and, therefore, need to understand their roles in protecting OVCs.

In circumstances where no legal protection is put in place, the child can be exposed to abuse in many
ways. The programme, therefore, aims at strenglhening the community capacities, duty bearers,
youth and children to provide an enabling environment for the care of OVCs and protection as well
as institutional strengthening.

l. 'r:q3u1q1-.

q!

s"*

Gsks
Slalus of Achievemenls

- 45,560 duty bearers, against a target of40,000, were sensitised and trained on OVC protection.

- 5379 children were reached and sensitised through the Child Participation Programme, thus
enabling them to identify their needs and solutions. This was against a target of4,800 children.

- 14 Rights ofthe child clubs (Rocs) were formed/strengthened, out ofa target of8.

- 48 local child protection community structures for OVC protection were established and/or
strengthened. l'his was againsl a target of 40.
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Eryecled outcomes

- Increased knowledge and skills in protecting children

- Increased networking as a result ofunderstanding the roles ofthe duty bearers

- Enhanced protection of children

Pholo 19: A batner ohowhtg differcal sla*eholdcn who supportcd od partlcipalel ia the Day ol
the Africaa Chlld Cclcbrfun dwiag the pcfiod aa&rfocus (202A2023linaacial year). This is an
annual evenl lhal is mukd oa fune ld. CTSK is onc of the rnajot slak holdcrc who aclively
parrlcittoled in the *cnl through gh'hg sr.pporl lo lhc Nalioaal Council of Chlldwn Semica (the
coordinoling body) s, the narional ond couaty let'els Through lhis *enl, over 20,000 chidren and
corununily me bers were reached ot nalioaal level aad abou 7,000 were rcached al each of lhe
coungt l*el evenls. Participants were scnsitkcd on child prolection issues, with lhe theme being

'The Righc of the Chlld ln the Digilal Envlronnunt'.
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Photos 20-23: CITSK stalfwelcome the CS and PS in the Minbtry oJ Labour and Social Prutection
al the CIYSK boolh during the Kenla Social Prulection Conlerence in April 2023. The evenl loo*
place at the Kenyo School of Governmenl x'here over 30,000 parlicipants were reached lhrough
capacity building on various child proteclion issues and lhrough CIVSK Programmes.
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Photo 21: CITSK aaff join pupils of dilfercnt schools in Nairobi duting tree planting and
managemenl Thb promotes enviru ntental conservation while al the same time encouraging child
parlicipation.

ll. HW/AIDS. Adolescent & outh Reomductive Health

This programme aims at reducing the prevalence of HIV/AIDS and enhance support mechanisms for
affected and infected orphans and other vulnerable children. It also addresses the healthcare needs of
the children and youth. The programme endeavours to advocate for behaviour change among
adolescents, children and adults. The aim is to enhance the quality ofcare, psychosocial support and
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provide counselling and referral services for children affected by HIV/AIDS in order to improve the
care given to them and their quality of life.

ln addition, the programme aims at prolonging the lives of parents so as to prevent children from
becoming orphans. lt also aims at reaching out to children and youth through HIV/AIDS and
reproductive health education. Child and youth participation is used where children and young people
reach out to their peers and other stakeholders.

At the same time, through this programme, sensitisation meetings are organised at the local
community level where the participants are trained and sensitised on HIV prevention, medical
adherence, nutrition, and fighting against stigma. The aim of this programme is to reduce new
infeclions, to encourage those who are infected to adhere to drug prescriptions and live a positive
lifestyle and also to reduce the stigmatisation ofthose infected. CWSK has a youth-friendly centre in
Nanyuki which is run jointly with Nanyuki Refenal Hospital.

Stalus ofachievemenls in lhe HIV/AIDS, Adolescent and Youth Reprcdactive Health Programme

- 25,866 children and youth were reached during the period under review. This was done in
schools through group sessions with children where they were sensitised about HIV/AIDS.

Pholo 25: A social worker from CIVSK engages secondary school studenls during a group session
in which sanitary lowels and slalionery *)ere dislrihuted. Thtough lhis programme, adolescenls are
sensilised on hygiene, needfor educolion, reproduclive health, HIV/AIDS, among othe$, with the
i nvo lve me n I of con s u h an ! s.
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12.

These are Strategic lntervention Projects for children separated from their families and others living
outside the family setup. The ventures ar€ also part of Kenya's Vision 2030 flagship project. The
vision of the projects is to see that all separated children in Kenya have a decent temporary
accommodation before they are reintegrated back to families. Once complete, the projects will be
fully operational in the following locations: Nairobi, Joska, Bungoma, Bomet, Murang'4 Kisumu,
lsiolo, Nanyuki, Kisii, Embu, Baringo, Turkana" Machakos, Nyandarua, Taita Taveta, and Kilifi. It is
important to note that during the 202212023 financial year, CWSK did not receive budgetary
allocation under Development for the upgrading of the centres. Therefore, CWSK only undertook
maintenance works at the centres and not much development works.

The integrated centres have health facilities that provide preventive and curative services to children.
These facilities also reach out to children, as well as other local community members, at the local
community level. The clinics also provide adolescent and youth reproductive health services as well
as counselling. The health facilities have significantly reduced the infant mortality rate. Some ofthe
rescued infants at the facilities have medical conditions that are referred to other hospitals.

The completion of these centres will lead to affordable housing by cutting down on the amount of
rent that CWSK pays while providing care, protection and custody in some ofthe counties such as

Nairobi. Children will enjoy a friendly environment that is less traumatising compared to them being
accommodated in a dormitory kind ofstructure since these centres are like homes. On the other hand,

the money saved from rent will be used to directly support the children.

In addition, the centres have stores to ensure food security for separated children and those affected
by various forms ofemergencies. The stores have foodstuffs that also support children living outside
family care. The centres have nutritionists who ensue the rations are in the right quantity and quality.

Ac h ieve me nls ia dewlopme nt

l. CWSK lsiolo - Phase I is complete. It comprises a perimeter wall, guardhouse, health centre and
office. Equipping and official launch ofthe health centre is required for operationalisation. Phase

2 is in progress. It comprises of three storey house blocks at 87% completion. Finishing and

equipping ofthe house blocks is required for occupation.

2. CWSK Nanyuki - Phase [, comprising a perimeter wall, health centre, office and guardhouse is

complete. Equipping and official launch of the health centre is required for operationalisation.
Phase 2, i.e. three storey house blocks, is in progress and is 87% complete. Finishing and

equipping ofthe house blocks is required for occupation.

3. Mama Ngina Kenyatta - Phase l, comprising a perimeter wall and a guard house is complete.

4. CWSK Murang'a - Phase I is 100% complete and it comprises perimeter walls, guard house.

kitchen unit, health centre, office, cabro parking, driveway and an ablution unit. Equipping and

official launching ofthe health centre is required for its operationalisation. Phase 2, comprised of
four-storey house blocks is in progress at 8770 completion. Finishing and equipping ofthe house

blocks is required for occupation.

5. CWSK Joska - Phase I is in progress. It comprises three foster houses, i.e one Bungalow house
block (86% complete), two one-storey house blocks at 86% completion, a maisonette which is

70% complete and an administration/office unit which is 60% complete. Phase 2 is in progress,

comprising one three-storey house block at 50% completion, a dining/kitchen unit (87%
complete), a laundry unit (65% complete), store godown (65% complete), civil works, i.e.

walkways and driveways (40%), drainage works 707o, landscape works (60%), two bio-digester
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units (80%), boundary wall works (80%). Finishing and equipping ofthe house blocks is required
for occupation.

6. CWSK Bungoma - Phase I is in progress and it comprises one bungalow house block at 870lo

completion. The house block requires finishing and equipping for occupation. Perimeter fencing
is 20olo complete, bio-digester works (70%), drainage works (80%) and landscape works at 2070
completion.

Impact ofthe Projecls

) When complete, the integrated child and family centres will annually rescue 20,000 most
vulnerable children.

) Children will receive holistic professional services under one roof. These are rescue and
temporary care centres for separated children, nutrition, physiotherapy, counselling, health,
education and psychosocial support.

) Protection ofchildren living outside family households will be improved.

) Spacious accommodation for children will be available, therefore providing adequate social
distancing for mitigation against Covid- 19.

) Children will be moved from rented premises, therefore saving on rent.

D Children will receive education at the centres, therefore improving their security.

) Capacity building for duty bearers (parents, teachers, children officers and health workers among
others) will be strengthened.

) Some ofthe rescued children have been found to suffer from malnutrition and other nutrition-
related conditions at the time of admission to the integrated centres. Their needs are adequately
addressed before they are reunified with their families.

> The stores at the centres ensure that food is available to the children throughout the year.

D The centres have created employment to hundreds ofyoung people in the project locations. They
youth are trained on EPS building, therefore acquiring techniques and skills that contribute
significantly to the housing industry in various parts ofthe country.

Sample projecl photos'IF
"*i,h

A seclion of fie Murung'o projecl - Main enlry
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(above) CWSK Integruled child and lamily ccntre - foska - A seclion ol maisonette 3 work in
pfogrcss.
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Conclusion

During the FY 202212023, Child Welfare Society ofKenya reached more children and vulnerable
young persons compared to the previous year. These were 539,194 in the FY 202212023 compared to
426,953 inthe FY 2021/2022. We give all the glory to the Almighty God for this development. This
has seen more children across the country being provided with welfare services, thus improving their
lives. It is also in line with our mission to promote and secure the rights of children and vulnerable
young persons in order for them to realise their full potential.

Despite not receiving funds under the Development programme, CWSK has undertaken maintenance
works at the integated child and family centres that are under constmction. We are, however,
optimistic that the Society will be allocated funds to complete the construction of the centres, thus
reaching and improving the lives of more children and families at the community level.

We look forward to another year to continue implementing our programmes and projects, thereby
positively impacting the lives of more children and vulnerable young persons as per our vision "to
see all children and vulnerable young people leading a happy, fulfilling and fruitful life".

Signed by:

I

2"4Ui42o21Date

Irene Mureithi

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER/-IVIANAGING TRUSTEE
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6. STATEMENT OF CWSK,s PERFOMANCE AGAINST PREDETERMINED
OBJECTTVES F'OR F'Y 202212023

A. 13 TEMPORARY PLACES OF SATETY

CWSK has thirteen temporary places of safety countryrvide. These are CWSK Mama Ngina Kenyatta
in Nairobi, CWSK Mji wa Salama in Mombas4 CWSK Kisii, CWSK Kanduyi, CWSK Arap Moi in
Nakuru, three CWSK foster families and group homes, CWSK Nanyuki, CWSK Embu, CWSK
Isiolo, CWSK Murang'a and CWSK Lodwar Transitional Centre. Through these programmes,
CWSK rescues and offers shelter and safe houses for children in need of temporary care and
protection. Further, CWSK provides psychosocial support to the children at the temporary places of
safety.

Achicr enre nts in 'l'cmporan l'laccs of Safelt

- CWSK also provided psychosocial support to children at the temporary places of safety and
networked with other chadtable children's institutions to offer services to the children and
ensure their reintegBtion into their families and communities.

- CWSK'S temporary places of safety have an average annual tumover of 1,5(X) children

B. RAPID RESPONSE AND RESCUE OF CIIILDREN IN DISTRESS

CWSK implements rapid response and children rescue services across the country through its well-
established branches that reach all the 47 counties. Whenever a case of a lost child, child abuse,
abandonment or exposure to detrimental risk comes to our attention, CWSK responds immediately
and rescues the child(ren) to temporary care and protection as interventions are made to reunite the
child with their family or provide altemative family care where necessary. Some of these cases are
referred to CWSK by the police, courts, hospitals, children officers, chiefs, other govemment
departments and the public.

Achie\enrcnls in Rapkl Resporrse and Rescue of ( hiklrrn in l)istrrss

ln the 202212023 financial year,12,582 children were provided with rescue services, including
psychosocial support, at CWSK temporary places of safety and networking institutions

C. EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS AND RESPONSE.

CWSK is the National Emergency Response and Rescue Organisation for children and thus has been

undertaking this prograrnme since inception to ensure the welfare of children and vulnerable youth.

The programme focuses on addressing child protection concems and ensuring protection of children

during emergencies like drought, floods, fire, collapse ofbuildings, terror attacks, ethnic conflicts and

violence among others. To ensure the provision of healthcare, shelter, housing, food, basic education

and protection as enshrined in the Constitution, CWSK responds to any emergency that may arise in
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any part of the country and provides psychosocial suppo( to children affected by emergencies and

their families. In responding to these emergencies,

Achierenrerrls in Entergcncr l'regrarrrlnrss and Reslxrnse

- 130,500 children in emergencies were provided with psycho-social support against a target
of 125,00. The children and families were provided with education support, food, clothing,
bedding, building materials and counselling.

- l2t,45E children in schools affected by emergencies were provided with complementary
education materials.

- 123 children caught up in emergencies were provided with identification, documentation,
tracing, mediation and re-unification services on a need basis during emergency response,
against a target of lfi).

D. ALTERNATIVE FAMILY CARE.

This programme is a Vision 2030 flagship project. Its overall goal is to increasingly realise a

conducive family and altemative Care for Children in Need of Special Protection (CNSP). Foster
care, adoption, and/or guardianship are the key components of the Altemative Family Care
programme. CWSK facilitates children to live and be cared for within families and communities.

Achicvemenls in Alternative Famill' ('are

- 1,031 foster and adoptive parents were assessed, trained and empowered, whereby eligible
cases were placed with children. This was against a target of 1,400.

- I,165 parents were trained on child care and alternative family care against a target of 1,000.

- Case follow-ups were undertaken, reaching 134 cases against a target of 120 cases. This
ensured child protection within families.

- 103 court reports for children were prepared and filed out ofa target of 100.

E. FAMILY COTJNSELING, MEDIATION, REHABILITATION AND EMPOWERMENT.

This programme aims at shengthening family relationships and enhancing their social and economic
capacity for them to effectively care and protect children. This is done through provision of
counselling, mediation, psychosocial support, rehabilitation and economic empowerment to families
for them to provide quality care for children.

Achirrcments in Fanrill ( ounsclling. Nlcdiation, Rchabilitalion antl l)mporrernrcnl.

- Psycho-social support (PSS) services (food, clothing, shelter, counselling, family mediation)
were provided to 125,925 families and children to ensure quality care for children. This was
against a target of 122,590 families.

- E62 families ofvulnerable children were identified, trained and empowered, against a target
of 1,0fi) families. There were concerted efforts, through capacity building, to prevent family
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distress and to support families, bearing in mind that there were increased political activities
in preparation for the 2022 general elections.

F. LOCAL, REGIONAL AIYD INTf,RNATIONAL FAMILY TRACING AND

REUNTUCATION

This programme focuses on family tracing for children who are not aware ofthe whereabouts of
their parents or parents not aware ofthe whereabouts of their children. Family tracing is undertaken
through physical tracing, media (using local dailies) and social investigations. Once the family has
been traced, adequate psychosocial support is offered to the child and the family for successful
reunification and reintegration. This is done locally, regionally and intemationally

Achicvenrcnls in l,mal, Regional and lnlcrnalional l'amil1 'l'racing and Reunificslbn

Provided 5,170 separated children with family tracing services (ldentification, Documentation,
Tracing and Re-unification - IDTR) through social investigations (physical tracing) and also by
placing their photos on in local dairies. This was against a target of 5,000.

G. EDUCATION AND SKILLS DEYELOPMENT

This programme is a Vision 2030 flagship project. The programme focuses on helping OVCs,
vulnerable young persons and other children access quality education and self-reliance skills training
through enhancing and strengthening early childhood development (ECD) programmes, providing
support towards education at all levels to all children in the I 5 CWSK temporary places of safety and
at local community level, helping children and youth to access quality education and self-reliance
skills. CWSK deals with the hard-to-reach children in different parts of the country. All children are
treated with equity regardless oftheir varied backgrounds and/or impairment. The children under the
support of CWSK are provided with direct support of school fees and levies, personal effects,
stationery and transport to school. Some are also given food and clothing. The programme focuses on
children in temporary places of safety and within the community

Achicvcmrnls in Etlucation antl Skills l)errk)pnrrnl

- Supported children in education and skills development and they are now enjoying their right
to education as stipulated in the Children Act and Article 53(l) (b) ofthe Constitution.

- 7,113 children, out of a target of 6,E90 children, were supported with complementary
education materials. These included stationery towels, school uniforms, shoes, school bags,
among others, to enable them continue with education.

- CWSK paid school fees and levies for 6,118 OVCs and young persons at the temporary places
of safety and in the community, against a target of6,059.

- 1,fi)7 parents whose children are under the education support programme were identified,
trained and empowered with income generating activities. This was against a target of 1,000.

- CWSK also facilitated 260 vulnerable young persons to join the National Youth Service
(NYS). The youth whojoined the NYS were given personal effects such as soap, shoe polish,
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bathing towels and inner wears, metallic boxes, iron boxes, rubber shoes, tracksuits and t-
shirts, transport and other support.

H. OVC PROTECTION-PROVISION OF PSYCHO-SOCIAL SI,JPPORT

This programme seeks to enhance the quality of care, psychosocial support and provide counselling
and referral services for OVC in orderto improve the care and quality oflife. Through the programme,
OVCs outside the family and other OVCs are provided with psychosocial support to enhance their
quality of life and protect them from exploitation.

Achier,cmrnls in OV(' l'roleclion-provision of Ps1 cho-Social Supporl

112,182 OVCs and vulnerable young person's outside the Cash Transfer Programme were provided
with psychosocial support (food, education, clothing, health & shelter). This was against a target of
112,000.

I. CHILD LABOUR

This programme aims at creating an enabling environment for child labour-free zones across the
country and providing psychosocial support to OVCs outside the family household. This includes
lobbying and advocating for policies and laws that promote a society free of child labour and
Commercial Sexual Exploitation of Children (CSEC), prevention and withdrawal of children from
situations ofchild labour, including CSEC, neglect, abuse and exploitation. Through this programme,
CWSK identifies, registers, rescues, rehabilitates, mediates families, traces and integrates/reunifies
these children with their families.

Achierenrenls in ( hild l.ahour

- Prevented and withdrew 5,404 children from child labour against a target of 4,500. The
children were involved in, or were at risk ofengaging in child labour and CSEC. They were
identified and provided with psychosocial support to go to school where they were retained.

- Contracts for l0 school-based social workers were renewed. Through the social workers, cases

of child labour in schools and at the community level were identified and relevant
interventions were made-

- 197 parents whose children are either in, or at the risk ofchild labour were identified,
trained and empowered with income generating activities.

J. CAPACITY BT'ILDING AND INSTITUTIONAL STRENGTHENTII{G

This programme aims at strengthening the institutional and technical capacity of duty bearers to
provide improved services to OVCs and enhance their protection. Through this programme, CWSK
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sensitises professionals directly dealing with the care of OVCs, the police, teachers, judges and

magistrates, chiefs and hospital staff. These people are involved at one point or another in the care of
OVCs and, thercfore, need to understand their roles in protecting OVCs.

{chitlrmcnls in ( apacit)' Iluilding and lnslilulk)nal Slrengthening

- 45,560 duty bearers, against a target of40,000, were sensitised and trained on OVC protection.

- 5)79 children were reached and sensitised through the Child Participation Programme, thus
enabling them to identify their needs and solutions. This was against a target of4,Efi) children.

- 14 Rights ofthe Child Clubs (ROCs) were formed/strengthened, out ofa target oft.
- 4E local child protection community structures for OVC protection were established and/or

strenghened. This was against a target of40.

K. IIIV/AIDS, ADOLESCENT & YOUTH REPRODUCTIVE HEALTH

This programme aims at reducing the prevalence of HIV/AIDS and enhance support mechanisms for
affected and infected orphans and other vulnerable children. It also addresses the healthcare needs of
the children and youth. The programme endeavours to advocate for behaviour change among
adolescents, children and adults. The aim is to enhance the quality of care, psychosocial support and
provide counselling and referral services for children affected by HIV/AIDS in order to improve the
care given to them and their quality of life.

ln addition, the programme aims at prolonging the lives of parents so as to prevent children from
becoming orphans. [t also aims at reaching out to children and youth through HIV/AIDS and

reproductive health education. Child and youth participation is used where children and young people

reach out to their peers and other stakeholders.

At the same time, through this programme, sensitisation meetings are organised at the local
community level where the participants are trained and sensitised on HIV prevention, medical
adherence, nutrition, and fighting against stigma. The aim of this programme is to reduce new
infections, to encourage those who are infected to adhere to drug prescriptions and live a positive
lifestyle and also to reduce the stigmatisation ofthose infected. CWSK has a youth-friendly centre in
Nanyuki which is run jointly with Nanyuki Referral Hospital.

Achie\cnrrnls in lll\'/.All)S. --\(lr)lesccrt rt Youlh Rcplotluclire llcallh l'rogr nlmc

25,E66 children and youth were reached during the period under review. This was done in schools
through group sessions with children where they were sensitised about HIV/AIDS.
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7. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATf,,Mf,NT

Corporate Governance is the process and structure by which organizations are directed and
controlled while ensuring accountability and transparency in resource mobilization and utilization.
Child Welfare Society of Kenya is committed to high standards of corporate governance, having
existed as a body corporate since 1955.

Board of Trustees

Child Welfare Society of Kenya is a membership organization and was established as an Approved
Society in 1955 and an irrevocable Trust in 1970. The Board ofTrustees is responsible for the
govemance of CWSK and it ensures that the organization complies with all government regulations
while achieving its objectives as per the CWSK strategic plan and performance contract. The Board
members are collectively responsible for the long-term success of the organization and they are
charged with the responsibility to provide leadership and oversee management ofthe organization.
Board Meetings

The Board of Trustees holds meetings on a regular basis and where necessary special meetings of
the Board are called.
Accountability

The Board of Trustees is responsible for reviewing and approving the annual budget ofthe
organization before submission to the relevant authorities. The Board also reviews and approves
financial statements to ensure they are a true representation of the organization's position. The
Board of Trustees signs a Performance Contract with the Government and oversees compliance and
realization of the same by the Management.
Organizational Policies

The organization has policies including the Human Resource policy, ICT policy and the Child
Protection policy, among others, which govem the organization and the interests ofchildren. These
poticies are in line with the CWSK strategic plan and the performance contract.
Audit

Intemal audit systems are in place. The organization undergoes extemal audit by the Auditor General

Organizational Structure

An organizational structure detailing lines ofauthority is in place and is entrenched in CWSK
Constitution. Staff professionalism and competence is maintained through recruitment policies and
a performance appraisal system that is keen on targets and accountability while taking into account
appropriate training requirements. Through continuous monitoring, staffs are expected to develop
and maintain the required skills to fulfil their responsibilities.

Sig n

I

Irene Mureithi
Chief Executive O flice r/lV1a n agi ng Trusiee

Mr. Joseph Gitau ,
Chairman, Board of Trustees

D^'", ...J:.1. /{*1. f,nlkDate:.J ^4Mwv
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8. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AI\[D ANALYSIS
The Chairman of the Board ofTrustees submits this report together with the financial report for the
year ended June 30, 2023.
The Board ofTrustees would like to pass their gratitude to the Govemment ofKenya for funding
the operations of CWSK for the purpose ofensuring the comfort ofthe children. The functions of
the Board include:

a. To receive budgetary allocation from the Govemment of Kenya.
b. To collect donations (whether periodical or otherwise).
c. To elect the Chairman of the Board ofTrustees.
d. To appoint the Board of Directors and the Chairman of Board of Directors.
e. To appoint the Managing Trustee who shall be the Chief Executive Ofticer of the Society.
f. To appoint the Treasurer.
g. To be the custodian ofall the assets, legal documents, and liabilities ofthe Society.

h. To establish the Secretariat which runs from the National level to the County level.
i. To issue appeals for donations and periodical reports on the work of Trustees.
j. To accept donations on any special trusts in connection with Child Welfare Society of

Kenya Programmes so that every donation so accepted shall be held subject to the terms and

conditions of the gifts.

The Board ofTrustees approved the CWSK budget. The amount requested from the Govemment
for full implementation ofthe organization's mandate has not been given yet. Under the leadership

of the Board, CWSK worked within this budget.

In the year under review, CWSK received Kshs.1,223,836,000. However, no funds were received

for development of CWSK TPS projects and this grossly affected the normal implementation of
programmes in terms ofachievement ofthe annual targets as well as projects. This was

compounded by the emergence ofthe ongoing drought in the country. This is due to the fact that
there was no rainfall experienced in the country in late 2022.

The drought situation in the Country has led to loss of livelihood for many households especially
the very vulnerable families. Many animals have also been r€ported to have died due to lack of
vegetation to feed on.

The fixed assets are held under a trust managed by a Board of Trustees registered under an

irrevocable trust deed of the Child Welfare Society of Kenya on l2th June 1970, established from
1955.

Irene Murcithi
Chief Erecu
Dtez...2

Mrnrging Truste€
.2a.Lt..

Mr. Joseph Gitau , HSC

SllirPfrft4ilrf.flr
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9. EII"VIRONMENTAL AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING

The vision of the Child Welfare Society of Kenya (CWSK) is to see allchildren and vulnerable young

persons leading happy, fulfilling, and fruitful lives. We go out of our way to ensure that the most

marginalized and the most vulnerable children in our society are given a fair chance through

protection and control, psychosocial support, education, provision of shelter and healthcare and

counselling.

As we pursue this ideal, we are aware of our responsibility to care for the Earth. CWSK knows very

well that to create an atmosphere conducive for the care and protection ofthe children, we must on

the other hand conserve the environment in which we work and live.

CWSK has from the beginning taken a conscious decision to make environmental conservation an

agenda in all our work with children and which is evident even in our development projects.

Tree planting and beautification ofour temporary places of safety and in all our held land across the

county is an endeavour we take seriously. In especially all our upcoming construction sites, we have

set aside ample spaces to grow trees, grass and flowers, giving the site fresh air, beauty and a cooling

effect.

We are working on reducing waste from our centres including kitchens by constructing biogas

digesters, which also help in solving a variety of energy and health issues in our centres and their

surroundings. For starters, the waste that is used in the digesters does not reach the dumpsites that

have become an eyesore and a source ofa variety ofdiseases affecting communities.

Secondly, the energy from the system, which is used for cooking, heating and lighting, is a major

boost to environment conservation as it saves on firewood and charcoal, diesel and water. This

reduces carbon emitted into the atmosphere thus ensuring a clean environment. The residue from the

digesters is also used in our gardens as fertilizer for the vegetables and other plants.

This technology will eventually be replicated in all our centres and the net effect in terms of

environmental conservation will be immense.

At CWSK, the use of the printing machine has been cut to below 20 percent as we emphasise on

digital documents, which are stored and shared online. This has minimized the use of printing paper,

which has a direct impact on the environment, as paper is a by-product ofwood from trees.

We also have an in-house policy that sees to it that electricity is used only when necessary,

encouraging the use of natural light through windows in our offices and ensuring that all electrical

equipment is shut down whenever not in use.

Outside our centres, the CWSK has been giving out water tanks to schools and communities for use

in harvesting rainwater. This has been the case especially in drought prone areas with water scarcity.
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IO. REPORT OFTHE TRUSTEES

The Trustees submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended

June 30,2023, which show the state of Child Welfare Society ofKenya affairs.
The principal activities of the Child Welfare Society of Kenya are:

l. To respond to all emergencies affecting children in Kenya and rescue children in emergency

situations.

2. To rescue, receive and provide care to children in need ofcare and protection.

3. To provide family tracing and re unification services for separated children.

4. To facilitate altemative family care (adoption, foster care and guardianship) ofchildren.

5. To strengthen, rehabilitate and empower families to promote quality care ofchildren.

6. To provide education, vocational skills to vulnerable children and young persons.

7. To build the capacity of duty bearers, right holders and provide institutional strengthening in

order to effectively ensure the welfare of children.

8. To provide quality temporary care to rescued children by upgrading/establishing temporary

places of safety including child care facilities, group homes, foster care homes, child rescue

centres, child protection units as may be considered necessary and in the best interest of the

child.

9. To ensure care and protection for Orphans and Vulnerable children without families rhrough

facilitating or /and providing shelter, education, health, food and nutition.

Results

The results of the Society for the year ended June 30,2023 are set out on page l -6.

Directors

The members ofthe Board ofTrustees who served during the year are shown on pages vii-viii.

Auditors

The Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit ofthe Society in accordance with Article

229 ofthe Constitution ofKenya and the Public Audit Act 2015.

By Order of the Board of Trustees

S

tel %2r
Irene Mureithi
Chlef Erecutive Oflicer/ Managing Trustee
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1I, STATEMENT OF THE TRUSTEES RESPONSIBLITIES

Section 8l ofthe Public Finance Management Act,20l2 and section l4 require the Trustees to
prepare financial statements in respect of Child Welfare Society of Kenya, which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Society at the end ofthe financial year and the operating
results ofthe Society for that year. The Trustees are also required to ensure that the Society keeps
proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial position of the
Society. The Trustees are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Society.

The Trustees are responsible for the preparation and presentation ofthe Society s financial
statements, which give a true and fair view ofthe state ofaffairs ofthe Society for and as at the end
ofthe financial year ended on June 30,2023. This responsibility includes: (i) maintaining adequate
financial management arrangements and ensuring that these continue to be effective throughout the
reporting period; (ii) maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position ofthe Society; (iii) designing, implementing and
maintaining intemal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation ofthe financial
statements, and ensuring that they are free from material misstatements, whether due to error or
fiaud; (iv) safeguarding the assets of the Society; (v) selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and (vi) making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Trustees accept responsibility for the Society's financial statements, which have been prepared
using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and
estimates, in conformity with lntemational Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS), and in the
manner required by the PFM Act, 2012. The Trustees are ofthe opinion that the Society s financial
statements give a true and fair view ofthe state of Society's transactions during the financial year
ended June 30, 2023, and ofthe Society s financial position as at that date. The Trustees further
confirm the completeness ofthe accounting records maintained for the Society, which have been
relied upon in the preparation of the Society s financial statements as well as the adequacy of the
systems of internal financial control.

Nothing has come to the attention ofthe Trustees to indicate that the Society will not remain a

going concern for at least the next twelve months from the date of this statement.

Approval of the financial statements

? ^{The Society s financial statements were approved by the Board on

signed on its behalf by:

202$and

L

Josepb Gitau,
Chairman, Board of Trustees

Irene Mureithi
CEO/ Managing Trustee
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REPUBLIC OF KENYA

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL

E n h a n c' i n g,4 c u n n t a h i I i t1'

HEADqUARTERS
Anniversary Towers

Monro\ria Street
P.O. Box ,oo84-oo1oo

NAIROBI

REPORT OF THE AUDITORGENERAL ON CHILD WELFARE SOCIETY OF KENYA
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE,2023

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on Lavvfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for intended purpose.

C. Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment and the internal controls, developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management Ac|,2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qualified Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Child Welfare Society of Kenya
set out on pages 1 to 29, which comprise of the statement of financial position as at
30 June, 2023, and the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net
assets, statement of cash flows and the statemenl of comparison of budget and actual

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Child Welfare Society of Kenyalor the year ended 30 June, 202j
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amounts for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and O
other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the
Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. I have obtained all
the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Child Welfare Society of Kenya as at 30 June, 2023,
and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance
with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and comply with
the Public Finance Management Acl, 2012 and the Child Welfare Society Order, 2014.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

l, Lack of Ownership Documents

The statement of financial position, and as disclosed in Note 14 to the financial statements
reflects property, plant and equipment balance of Kshs.2,985,443,589. lncluded, in the
balance is an amount of Kshs.1,151,313,276 for land. However, eighteen (18) parcels of
land spread across the country did not have complete ownership documents while some
had none at all. Although the Society provided some documents indicating progress in
acquiring the ownership, the process had not been completed by the time of audit in
January, 2024. Fwiher, some parcels of land had ongoing court cases regarding
ownership.

ln the circumstance, the accuracy, ownership and completeness for property, plant and
equipment of Kshs.2,985,443,589 could not be confirmed.

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The statement of financial position reflects cash and cash equivalent balance of
Kshs.635,250,211 as disclosed in Note 18 to the financial statements. However, eighteen
(1 8) bank accounts with Kshs.1 ,1 30,382 balance remained inactive throughout the year,
though Management has written to the bank to activate four (4) out of the eighteen
accounts. Response from the bank on their status at April, 2024 was not provided for
audit review. ln addition, no explanation was provided for failure to close the remaining
fourteen (14) of them.

In lhe circumstances, the acruracy and completeness of the cash and cash equivalents
balance of Kshs.635,250,21 1 could not be confirmed.

3. Long Outstanding Receivables

The statement of financial position, and as disclosed in Note 17 to the financial statements
reflects receivables balance of Kshs.6,971,908 as at 30 June,2023, which has been
outstanding for a long time. However, Management has not indicated the effort being
made to recover the long outstanding receivables.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and recoverability of the receivables balance of
Kshs.6,971,908 could not be confirmed.

Report of he Auditor-General on Child lfelfare Society of Kenya lor the year ended 30 June, 202i
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The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
lrrstitutions (lSSA|s). I am independent of the Child Welfare Society of Kenya
Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe
that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my qualified opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

Budgetary Control and Performance

The statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts reflects a final expenditure
budget and actual on a comparable basis of Kshs.1,223,836,000 and
Kshs.1,091,620,232 respectively resulting in under-expenditure of Kshs.132,215,768 or
1 1% of the budget.

The under-expenditure may have affected the implementation of the strategic objective
of provision of the legal and institutional framework for the care, control protection and
adoption of children.

My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

Other Matter

Unresolved Prior Year Matters

As disclosed under the progress on follow-up on the auditor's recommendations section
of the financial statements, various prior year audit issues remained unresolved as at
30 June, 2023. Management had not provided reasons for the delay in resolving the prior
year's audit issues as required bythe Public Sector Accounting Standards Board template
and The National Treasury's circular Ref. AG.3/88 Vol. Vll (28) of 09 May,2023.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As requlred by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on Lawfulness
and Effectiveness in Use of public Resources section of my report, I confirm that, nothing
else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been
applied laMully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

1. lncomplete Building Works

The statement of financial position reflects property, plant and equipment balance of
Kshs.2,985,443,589 as disclosed in Note 14 to the financial statements. The balance
Report ofthe Auditor-General on Child ll/elfare Society of Kenya for the year ended 30 June, 2023
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includes construction work in progress amount of Kshs.1,547 ,253,917 out of which
Kshs.1 ,427,120,834 was in respect to construction of buildings in six sites of lsiolo,
Nanyuki, Murang'a, Bungoma, Joska and Mama Ngina. As previously reported, the
contracts for these projects were awarded at contract sums totalling Kshs.3,951,587,738
and were expected to be completed in 2018. However, a physical verification in February,
2024 revealed that they were still incomplete despite Kshs.1,427,720,834 having been
paid as at 30 June, 2023. Management has not indicated when these projects were likely
to be completed for use by the children as intended.

ln the circumstances, the delay may result in escalated costs for completion and value
for money may not be obtained.

2. Non-Comptiance with One-Third of Basic Salary Rule

Review of the payroll of the Society revealed that during the year under review, twenty-
tvto (22) employees received a net salary of less than one{hird (1/3) of their basic salaries
contrary to Section C.1(3) of the Human Resource Policies and Procedures Manual for
the Public Service, 2016 which provides that public officers shall not over commit their
salaries beyond two thirds (2/3) of basic salary. Management did not provide satisfactory
explanations for the failure to comply with the policy.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the human resource policies and
procedure manual.

3. Overdrawn Bank Accounts

The statement of financial position reflects cash and cash equivalents balance of
Kshs.635,250,21 1 as disclosed in Note 18 to the financial statements. The balance
includes Kshs.633,538,266 in respect of the current account balance, out of which,
Kshs. 176,420 relates to two (2) overdrawn bank accounts. This was contrary to
Regulation 82(7) of the Public Finance Management (National Government) Regulations,
2015 which provides that no official government bank account shall be overdrawn, nor
shall any advance or loan be obtained from a bank account for official purposes beyond
the limit, authorized by The National Treasury in line with Section 28(4) of the Act.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the Regulations.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, except for the mafters described in the Basis for Conclusion on

Report ofthe Auditor-Generol on Child Welfare Society of Kenya for the year ended 30 June, 2023
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Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance section of my
report, I confirm that, nciiring else has come to my aftention to cause me to believe that
internal controls, risk management and governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

Lack of an Audit Committee and Weak internal Audit Unit

As reported in the previous year, the Society did not have an Audit Committee contrary
to Section 73 (5) of the Public Finance Management Acl,2012 which states that every
national government entity shall establish an internal auditing committee whose
composition and functions are to be prescribed by the regulations. Further, the lnternal
Audit did not have an approved internal audit charter and an approved audit plan. This
was contrary to Section 73(1) and (2) of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 which
requires every National Government entity to establish means for conducting internal
audit reviews in accordance with the guidelines issued by the Accounting Standards
Board and regulations that prescribe requirements for conducting internal audits.

ln the circumstances, the effectiveness of risk management measures and governance
of the Society could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal controls, risk management and overall governance
were operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Trustees

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal control as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control, risk management and overall governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Society's ability to continue to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Society or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Child lltelfare Society of Kenya for the year ended 30 June, 2023
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The Board of Trustees is responsible for overseeing the Society's financial reporting
process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with
relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and
systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance
and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control
environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) ot lhe Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal controls in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 201 5 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) ot lhe Constitution. My consideration of
the internal controls would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal controls may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

Report of the Auditor-Ceneral on Child Welfare Society of Kenya for the year ended 30 June, 2023
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a ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and.perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material urrcertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Society's
ability to continue to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Society to cease to
continue to sustain its services.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the 'disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Society to express an opinion on the financial statements.

. Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal controls that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and where
applicable, related safeguards.

t

FCPA
UDITORGENERAL

Nairobi

13 May,2O24

a

S
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Child lYefare Society of Kenya
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2023

13. STATEMENTOF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JI]NE 2023

REVENUE FROM

TRANSACTIONS

NON-EXCHANGE

RECURRENT FTINDS

Govemment Grant

Other Grants

Other Income

Total Recurrent Revenue

Note 2022n023 2021D022

KShs KShs

6

7

8

1.24q.404.948 q56.502.qr8

t,223,836.000

23,656,231

|,912.7 t7

933,840,000

22,081.296

68t,632

267,384,473

7,566,98s

19,770,767

t4t,t64,933

386,270,374

Recurrent Expenses

Compensation of Employees

Directors Expenses

Depreciation Charge

Operation Expenses

OVC Development

Subtotal - Recurrent Expenses

9

l0

t4

ll
13

407,144,994

6,964,250

2t,24s,rr

t52,557,320

499,580,182

r.087.4qr.857 822.157.532

Finance Costs t2 2,477,208 1,625,297

SI]RPLUS(DEFICIT) FROM RECT]RRENT
ACTTVITIES

t 5q.435.883 132.810.00q

The notes set out on pages 7 to 24 form an integrel part ofthese Financial Statements.

(
.......\ \\

\
Ireue Mureithi Charles Mai"na

G.l\I Finance

D^""2.:.1.bil,1,

Joseph Gitau

CEOManagiqg Trustee

D,k2.:.1.W.Jt.12.?+

-il

I

fut+
Chairman. Board of Trustees

D^k,2.y:.MJt.a?Att'



Child lltelfare Society of Kenya
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2023

14. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 30 JUNE 2023

Note

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets

Property, Plant & Equipment

Inv6tments

Safaricom shares l5

t4 2,985,443,589 2980,742,574

2022t2023

KShs

2,23t,250

29E7,674,839

4,533,643

6,971,908

635,250,21

108,053,837

754.809.599

1J_{2,4M,4i8

E96,700

E96.700

431,871,t42

l,204,907,081

2,104,809,515

3,74t,5E1,738

3J_42,434,478

on behalf of the

202U2022

KShs

3,181,125

29t3,923599

I,355,000

264.324.E39

273,023,560

108,053,837

_515,75LLl5

t,6gL6E0Ji5

67,144,445

67.144.445

253,819,E94

1.204,907,08t

2,104,809,515

3,563,536,490

r.6UI^680^9t5

Current A.srcts

lnventories

Receivables

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Trustees Account

Total Assets

Finaoced by:

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable and Accruals

Net Assets

Accumulated Fund

Revaluation Reserves

Capital Reserves

Total Net Assets

Total Net Assets & Liabilities

I Statements set out on pages

l6

t1

r8

l9

20

Irene Mureithi Charles Maina

G.M Finanee

D,E 2:!fu*1,.U."

Trustees by:

Jose

Cha

tau

of Trusteeslrman

)

r .: ti.

Chief Execu(ive Qflicer/Managing Trustee

Dil"2.:Mltruy o"t"21 xAsl-
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15. STATEMENT OF CTIANGES IN NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDf,D 30 JUNE 2023

Balance as at I st July
202'l
Capital Grants
Received
Surplus (Deficit) for
the Period.
Prior Year
Adjustments relating
to previous years)
Balance as at 30th

120,999,795 1,204,907,081

132,820,099

1,243,992

Jtne 2022
251E19.894 lrll4g ])Er 2J04Jrp515

Balance as at lst July
2022 253,819,894 1,204,907,081 2,104,809,s15 3,s63,s36,490

Capital Grants
Received
Surplus (Deficit) for
the Period

r s9,43s,883 159,43s,883

Prior Year
Adjustments relating 18,615,365 - 18,615,365
to previous Years

Balence es at 30th 4JrlzrJ42 r204J07JlE1 2J04.809.5r5 SJ4llEZJaE
June 2023

Nature and purpose ofreserves

The Registered Trust creates and maintains reserves in terms of specific requirements as follows

i) Capital Reserve - this is used to record contribution made by Government in form of

development grants transfers, for emergency and welfare ofchildren.

ii) Revaluation Reserve - this is used to indicate the re-valued amounts on the plant property and

equipment, and any other adjustments on the same.

3

Accumulated

Fund

KShs

Revaluation

Reserves

KShs

Capital

Reserves

KShs

I ,680,521,1 l l

423,044,412

Total

KShs

3,006,427,987

423,044,412

r32,820,099

1,243,992

35615t6,4tu)
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16. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED 30 JT]NE,2023

Crsh flows from op€rating sctivities
Net Surplus (Deficit) for the year

Adjusted for itcm not involving movement
ofcash
Depreciation
Unrealised Loss(Gain) on investments

Opereting Surpluy(DeIicit) before
Working Cepitrl Changes

(lncrease/decrcase in inventory
(lncrease)/decrease in receivables

lncrease(decrease) in payables

I ncreasey'(decrease) in Trustee Account
Nct crsh gencrrtcd from opereting
rctivities

hvesting ,ctivitics
Purchase of Fixed Assels

Cesh from opereting and investing
sctivitiqs

Finrncing ectivities
Development Govemment Fund
Prior Year Adj ustment relating to Previous
Years
Net crsh from financing activities

Nct cesh in(out) flow for the yelr

Cash and cesh equivrlents rt lst July

nd cash equivrlents 8s el30th Jun€

2022t23

KShs

202il22

KShs

(3,r 78,643)
257,352,932

(66,247,744)

369557,4r4

159,435,883

2t ,245,t I I
949,875

181,630,869

132,820,099

t9,770,7 67
2,027,250

154,618,1l6

(248,287,944)

(3,442,686)
105,580

(97.006,934)

(97,668,384)

094.675,318)

423,044,4t2

t ,243,992
424,288,403

229,613,085

43,4t0,475

J.D,Azl,fig

(25,946,128)

J43,6r r186

18,61 5,365

I E,6l sJ6s

362226,651

273,02r,560

Charles Maina
G.M
Date

63s-250-2 t I

Joseph Gitau

r
Irene Mu re

UYM
4

Chief Erecuf ivp Offi cer/lVlanaging Trustee

D^t".2.:I.ry{NY ?tu+
Chairmen. Board cf Trustees

,^,".2i!.M:1,*.*
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17. STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOT'NT

FOR TITE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

RE\rENIJE

Govemment grants -
Rccuflent
Covemment grants - Development
Covemment grants - Moratorium

Orphans and Vulncrable Children (OVC) Development

Project Cranlsr Nakuru [nps€try
Donatiotui/O$er Incorncs

TOTAI, INCOME

RECURRENT

Op€ration Expenses
Moratorium Expenses
Fdnily Strengthening and Tracin8 Proglam
Capital Expenditure

P€rsonnel Costs
Trustees Expenses

TOTAL RECURRENT EXPENDITURE

DE}'ELOPM ENT PROGRAMME

OVC DOVELOPMENT
Capacily Building, Rescarch and Advocacy Program

Education and Skills Development for Unreached Children at the
Community Level
l]mergency, Preparcdness Response
Progmtiunes

Temporary Plac€s ofSafety (including Children's Horn€)
Progranrmes

Aliemativ€ Family Care

t,500,000,000
1,229.183,500

(276,164,000)

0.229.383.500)

Original Budget

2022-2023

KSh!

r,4?0,6r6,500

Adjustments

2022-2023

Final Budget

2022-2023

KShr

1,223,t36,000

Actual

Comparable

basis

2022-2023

KSh!

t,223,t36.000

2t,2't4,905
4,294,041

Performance difference

2022-2023

KShs 'hKSh!

( r,470,616,500)

2t,274,905
4,294,043

t00%
rc04.

d,200,ofl,000 (2,976,16,1,000) 1r23,t36,000 I 
"2{9,,().1,9,1t

25.S6E,9,tt 2.1./.

285,823,624
2t3,344,429

40,184,229

60,486,571

998,23 t ,94'l
2,600,000

( 105,821,624)
(2t3 _344.429)

(15 ,184 ,229)
(45.486.573)

(5?r,231,947)

r80,000,000

5,000,000
15,000,000

420,000,000
? n00 orx)

627.000,000

152,557,320 27,442,680

3,373,600
13,r05,469

407,144,994

6,964,250

1,626,400
r,894.51r

12.855,006
l5 750

43"S54J6?

l5.2o/o

00/o

12.5v.
t2 60h

3.1./o

0.50/o

r,601 J 70,t02
4 400 000

(914210,t021 5E3,145,633 1.00/"

r38,485,720

459,179,546

t81,286,023

( 120,485,720)

(354,r29,546)

127,049,977

18,000,000

t05,000,000

3 r4,336,000

9,95 t,800

99,?32,800

2'7 6,732..613

8,048,200

5.261,200

31,603,367

44.70/o

5.0%

t2 00/"

(178,289,909)
(246,654,500)

5

1',l'l ?8s am
250,654,500

155,500.000

4,000,000

106,058,053

2,83t,413
49,44t,947

1, t68,527
3t.8r/.

29.20/o
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TOTAL OVC DEVELOPMENT

PROJEC'TS DEVELOPMENT

Upgrrditrg CWSK PlrcB ofSrf.ty (D.v.hpmctrl proj.ctt )

TOTAL PROJECTS DEVELOPMENT

TOTAL CWSK BUDGET YEAR 2022202]

11725s.,,59t1 596rE36,000

l,2293$,500 (r229J&3Sm)

1,229J&r500 (lr29JE3,s00)

,1,200,000,000 (2,976,16,1,0001 I J23,t36,000

Variance Explanations
A Rccurr.ntEtpendltur.

PROGRAMMEI/ACTIVITY
Govemment grants - Recurrent

Oovemment grants - Dev€lopment

Orphans and Vulnerable Children (OVC) Development

Covemmen! grants - Adminisration

RECURRENT
Operalion Expenses

Family Strengthcning & Family Tracing Programme

Capital Expenditure

Personnel Costs

B DEVELOPMENTPROCRAMME
OVC DEVELOPMENT
Capacity Building, Research and Advocacy Programme

Education and Skills Development for Unreached Children at the Community Level
Emergency, Preparedness and Rcsponse Programme

Temporary Places ofSafety (including Children's Home) Programme

Altemative Family Care

Vrriarcc ComErcnts

15.2o/o Exchequer received larc in June 2023

{95J06,759 l0rJ29J4l t1.00/.

0 ll,r6?,E40 (13,167,t40) (r00)%

0 l3,l67,til0 (13,t67,t40) (lm)%

l,091 ,620432 132,2t5,76t t0.ao/"

Varirtrcc
Yo

ovo

32.5o/o

l2.6Yo

3.lo/o

44.7Vo

5.0o/o

12.Oo/o

3t.E%
29.20/"

Exchequer received late in June 2023

Exchequer received late in June 2023

Exchequer received late in June 2023

Exchequer rcceived late in June 2023

Exchequer received late in June 2023
Emergency funds not planned

Exchequer received lat€ in June 2023

Exchequer received late in June 2023
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18. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I. GENERAL INFORMATION

Child Welfare Society of Kenya is a membership society under the society's Act, with an

irrevocable Trust under perpetual succession Act for the care, protection, welfare and Adoption of

children. [t is the national adoption society for Kenya and the national emergency response, welfare

and rescue organization for children. The society is a body corporate, established and gazetted in

1955 as an approved society Gazette Notice No. 1768 of 2711211955, an exempt society gazette

notice 1536 of 04/ll/1955, Certificate of Exemption number 455 and the adoption society for

Kenya, Gazette Notice No. 1356 of2810411969. It is an exempt society with permanent truste€s of

public nature, with an irrevocable Trust of 1970. A Legal Order No.58 of 2014 was put in place

which is in conflict with all the existing CWSK Legal Instruments. CWSK has existed as a body

cooperate since 1955, as well as an irrevocable Trust and a membership Society.

2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AI\'D BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the measurement

at re-valued amounts ofcertain items of property, plant and equipment, marketable securities and

financial instruments at fair value, impaired assets at their estimated recoverable amounts and

actuarially determined liabilities at their present value.

The preparation offinancial statements in conformity with Intemational Public Sector Accounting

Standards (IPSAS) allows the use of estimates and assumptions. It also requires management to

exercise judgement in the process ofapplying the Society's accounting policies.

The financial statements have been prepared and presented in Kenya Shillings, which is the

functional and reporting currency of the Society.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the PFM Act, and Intemational

Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS). The accounting policies adopted have been

consistently applied to all the years presented.

7



Child Welfare Society of Kenya
Annual Reports and Financial Stalements
For the year ended June 30, 2023

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STAIYDARDS
i. Relevant new standards and amendments to published standards effective for the year ended

30 June 2023:

ll New and amended standards and interpretations also effective forthe year ended 30 June 2023

l Early adoption of standards

The entity did not early-adopt any new or amended standards in year ended 301612023

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNINCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Revenue recognition

i) Revenue from non-erchange transsctions

Fees. taxes and fines
The Entity recognizes revenue fiom fees, taxes and fines when the event occurs and the asset
recognition criteria are met. To tte extent that there is a related condition attached that would give
rise to a liability to repay the amount, deferred income is recognized instead of revenue. Other
non-exchange revenues are recognized when it is probable that the future economic benefits or
service potential associated with the asset will flow to the Entity and the fair value of the asset can
be measured reliably,

8

Standard Impact
IPSAS 39:
Employee
Benefits

Applicable: ln January 2018
The objective to issue IPSAS 39 was to create convergence to changes in IAS l9
Employee benefits. The IPSASB needed to create convergence of IPSAS 25 to
the amendments done to IAS l9.The main objective is to ensure accurate
information relating to pension liabilities arising from the defined benefit
scheme by doing away with the conidor approach.

Standard Effective date and imprct:

IPSAS 40:
Public Sector
Combinations

Applicable: l'r January 2019:
The standard covers public sector combinations arising from exchange
transactions in which case they are treated similarly with IFRS
3(applicable to acquisitions only) Business combinations and
combinations arising from non-exchange transactions which are
covered purely under Public Sector combinations as amalgamations.
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Transfer from Other Governm€nt Entities
Revenues fiom non-exchange transactions with other govemment entities are measured at fair
value and recognized on obtaining control of the asset (cash, goods, services and property) if the
transfer is free from conditions and it is probable that the economics benefits or services potential
related to the asset will flow to the entity and can be measured reliably. Recurrent grants are
recognized in the Statement ofFinancial Performance. Development/capital grants are recognized
in the Statement of Financial Position and Statement ofChanges in Net Assets, and realized in the
Statement of Financial Performance over the useful life ofthe assets that have been acquired using
such funds.

iD Revenue from exchange transactions

Rendering of services
The Entity recognizes revenue from rendering ofservices by reference to the stages of completion
when the outcome ofthe transaction can be estimated reliably. The stage ofcompletion is measured
by reference to labour hours incurred to date as a percentage oftotal estimated labour hours.
Where the contract oulcome cannot be measured reliably, revenue is recognized only to the extent
that the expenses incurred are recoverable.

Rentel income

Rental income arising from op€rating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a

straight-line basis over the lease terms and included in revenue.

Other Income
Interest income, school tuition and dispensary income are recognized as received

b) Tares

i) Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the cunent period are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used
to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date
in the area where the Society operates and generates taxable income.
Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in net assets is recognized in net assets
and not in the Stat€ment of Financial Performance. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in the tax retums with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject
to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

ii) Delened tax

Defened tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
reporting date.
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except in respect of
taxable temporary differences associated with investments in controlled entities, associates and
interests injoint ventures, when the timing ofthe reversal ofthe temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward ofunused tax credits and unused tax loss€s can be utilized,
except in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investrnents in controlled
entities, associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that suflicient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part ofthe deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-
assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that
future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
Defened tax relating to items recognized outside surplus or deficit is recognized outside surplus
or deficit. Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction in net
assets.

Defened tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set
offcurrent tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

c) Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition ofthe
items. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the entity recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is
recognized in the carrying amount ofthe plant and equipment as a replacement ifthe recognition
criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in surplus or deficit
as incurred. Where an asset is acquired in a non-exchange transaction for nil or nominal
consideration the asset is initially measured at its fair value.
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Depreciation is calculated to write offthe cost or valuation of property and equipment in equal
annual instalments over their estimated useful lives. The rates are;

Freehold land Nit

Leasehold land Over period of lease

Buildings 2Yo

Motor vehicles 25%

Fixtures, fumiture & fittings l2.5Yo

Equipment 200/"

Computers 30%

Capital work in progress is not depreciated until such as time as the asset is brought into use. No
depreciation is provided for in the year ofacquisition, whilst full depreciation is provided for in
the year of disposition.
Revaluatiou reserve on buildings is amortised at 2o/o pet year-

d) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognized at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a non-exchange transaction is their fair value at the date of the exchange. Following
initial recognition, intangible assets are canied at cost less any accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses. Intemally generated intangible assets, excluding capiolized
development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in surplus or deficit in the
period in which the expenditure is incuned.
The useful life of the intangible assets is assessed as either finite or indefinite.

e) Inventories

Inventory is measured at cost upon initial recognition. To the extent that inventory was received
through non-exchange transactions (for no cost or for a nominal cost), the cost ofthe inventory is
its fair value at the date ofacquisition.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and conditions are accounted for,
as follows:

a. Raw materials: purchase cost using the weighted average cost method

b. Finished goods and work in progress: cost ofdirect materials and labour and a proportion
of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding
borrowing costs

ll
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lnventory is measured at cost upon initial recognition. After initial recognition, inventory is

measured at the lower ofcost and net realizable value. However, to the extent that a class of
inventory is deployed at no charge or for a nominal charge, that class of inventory is measured at

the lower ofcost and current replacement cost.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessaq/ to make the sale, exchange or
distribution. Inventories are recognized.rs an expense when deployed for utilization or
consumption in the ordinary course of operations of the Society.

f) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Society has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result ofa past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or
service potential will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount ofthe obligation.
Where the Society expects some or all ofa provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an

insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain.

The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of financial performance net
ofany reimbursement.

Contingent liabilities

The Society does not recognize a contingent liability, but discloses details of any contingencies
in the notes to the financial statements, unless the possibility ofan outflow ofresources
embodying economic benefits or service financial statements, potential is remote.

Contingent assets

The Society does not recognize a contingent asset, but discloses details of a possible asset whose
existence is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control ofthe Society in the notes to the financial statements.
Contingent assets are assessed conlinually to ensure that developments are appropriately
reflected in the financial statements. If it has become virtually certain that an inflow of economic
benefits or service potential will arise and the asset's value can be measured reliably, the asset
and the related revenue are recognized in the financial statements of the period in which the
change occurs.

g) Nature and purpose of reserves

The Society creates and maintains reserves in terms of specific requirements as follows:
(i) Capital reserve - used to record contribution made by govemment in form of grants / transfers
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(ii) R evaluation reserve - used to indicate the revalued amount on the plant, property and
equipment.

h) Changes in accounting policies and estimates

The Society recognizes the effects ofchanges in accounting policy retrospectively. The effects of
changes in accounting policy are applied prospectively if retrospective application is impractical.

i) Employee benefits

Retirement benefit plans

Short term employee benefits include items such as: (a) Wages, salaries, and social security
contributions; (b) short term compensated absence (such as paid annual leave and paid sick
leave) where the compensation for the absences is due to be settled.
When an employee has rendered service to the Society during an accounting period, the Society
recognizes the undiscounted amount ofshort term employee benefits expected to be paid in
exchange for that service: as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any amount already
paid.
Ifthe amount already paid exceeds the undiscounted amount ofthe benefits, the Society
recognises the excess (i) as an asset (prepaid expense) to the extent that the prepayment will lead
to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash refund; and (ii) as an expense, unless
another standard requires or permits the inclusion ofthe benefits in the cost of an asset

j) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short term deposits on call
and highly Iiquid investments with an original maturity of thrce months or less, which are readily
convertible to known amounts ofcash and are subject to insignificant risk ofchanges in value.
Bank account balances include amounts held in various commercial banks at the end ofthe
financial year.

k) Budget information

The National Assembly approved the original budget for FY 2022-2023 on 9th June 2022. The
entity's budget is prepared on a different basis to the actual income and expenditure disclosed in
the financial statements. The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis using a

classification based on the nature of expenses in the statement of financial performance, whereas
the budget is prepared on a cash basis. The amounts in the financial statements were recast from
the accrual basis to the cash basis and reclassified by presentation to be on the same basis as the
approved budget. A comparison ofbudget and actual amounts, prepared on a comparable basis to
the approved budget, is then presented in the statement of comparison of budget and actual
amounts. In addition to the Basis difference, adjustrnents to amounts in the financial statements
are also made for differences in the formats and classification schemes adopted for the presentation
ofthe financial statements and the approved budget.
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A statement to reconcile the actual amounts on a comparable basis included in the statement of
comparison of budget and actual amounts and the actuals as per the statement of financial
performance has been presented under section l7 ofthese financial statements.

l) Comparative figures

Where necessary comparative figures for the previous financial year have been amended or
reconfigured to conform to the required changes in presentation.

m) Subsequent events

There have been no events subsequent to the financial year end with a significant impact on the
financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2023.

n) Trustees Account

This relates to income generating activities and property held thereunder which continue to be
presided over by the Trustees.

o) Finencial managemenl risk and objectives

The Society's activities erpose it to a variety of finsncial risks including credit, liquidity and

capital risks. The Society's overall risk management programme focuses on unpredictability of
changes in the business environment and seeks to minimize the potential adverse effect of such
risks on its performance by setting acceptable levels of risk.

5. SIGNIFICAIIT JTJDGMENTS AIID SOIIRCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of the Society's financial statements in conformity with IPSAS requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported arnounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of
the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that require a material adjustnnent to the carrying amount ofthe asset or liability affected
in future periods. State alljudgements, estimates and assumptions made:

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk ofcausing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts ofassets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Society
based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial
statements were prepared. However, existing circumstances and assumptions about future
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developments may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of
the Entity. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. IPSAS 1.140

Useful lives and residual vaiues

The useful lives and residual values of assets are assessed using the following indicators to
inform potential future use and value from disposal:

a. The condition of the asset based on the assessment ofexperts employed by the Society

b. The nature ofthe asset, its susceptibility and adaptability to changes in technology and

processes

c. The nature ofthe processes in which the asset is deployed

d. Availability of funding to replace the asset

Changes in the market in relation to the asset

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Society has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a

result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or
service potential will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount ofthe obligation.
Where the Society expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an

insurance contrac! the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain.
Tbe expense relrting to any provision is presented in the staiement of linancial
performance net of any reimbursement.

6. TRANSFERS FROM MINISTRIES, DEPARTMENTS AND AGENCIES

2021-2022

ICShs

1,3 56,884,4 l2

Amount

recognized to

Statement of

Comprehensive

Income

Amount

deferred

under

deferred

income

Amoutrt

recognized in

capiial fund

Total grant

income during

the ye|r

Name of the Entity

sending tbe grant

KShs KShs KShs I(Shs

r,223,836,000 r.223.836,000
Ministry of Labour

and Social Protection

1,223,836,000 1r23,E36,000Totel

l5
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7. OTHER GRANTS

8. OTHER INCOME

9. COMPENSATION OF EMPLOYEES

Description 2022-2023 202r-2022

KShs KShs

Project Grants: Nakuru Lapsetry 21,274,905 20,275,871

Project Grants: Katian Diesel

Donations/Other Incomes 2,381,326 1,805,425

Total other grrnts 23,656231 22,oEt296

Description 2022-2023 2021-2022

KShs KShs

Interest Received 260 5,562
Dispensary Income 18,710 18,990

School Tuition Fees 3,033,900 2,684,330
Unrealized (I-oss)/ gains on investments (949,875) (2,027,250\

Foreign Currency exchange gairV(loss) ( 190,278)

Total other income 1,912,717 68r,632

Description 2022-2023 2021-2022

KShs KShs

Basic salaries 309,924,609 232.007.0t1
Pensions- Old Mutual 60.863,143
Allowances 34,195,002 34,648,862
NSSF Employer
contribution

2,162,240 728,600

Total Employee costs 407,144,994 2673E4,473
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IO. DIRECTORS EXPENSES

Total Directors' e moluments 6,964250

II. OPERATION EXPENSES

7566,9E5

Description 2022-2023 202t-2022

KShs KShs

Chairman's Honoraria- Board of
Trustees

960,000 9 t 5,000

Chairman's Honoraria- Board of
Directors 960,000
Sitting allowances- Trustees I ,195,000 1,280,000

795,000Sitting allowances- Directors
Medical Insurance

Induction and Training

I,750,250 106,5 l0Travel and accommodation-
Trustees

I,304,000 5,265,475Other members allowances

Description 2022-2023 202r-2022

KShs KShs

Operation Erpenses: 152.557320 141.164.933
-Motor Vehicle expenses 30,202,401
-Utilities: Water, electricity, etc 1r,209,832
-Repairs and maintenance 13,810,609
-Communication 1,961,927

-Office rent 9,097,t2t
-Professional services r 6,045,655

-Printing and stationery 1,771,620
-OIIice security t6,429,847
-Staff travel and accommodation 52,026,308

Total Operation Expenses 152,5s7J20 141,164,933
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I2. FINANCE CosTs

13. OVC DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURE

Description 2022-2023 2021-2022

KShs KShs

Bank Charges 2,459,721 1,577,535

Mpesa Charges t7,4E7 47,762

Totel Finance Costs 2,47720E r,625297

Description 2022-2023 2021-2022

KShs KShs

Capacity building & Institutional
sfrengthening 9,951,800 9.044.655

Education & skills development 99,732,623 t16,261,740

Emergency Response 276,732,633 99,048,835

Family tracing & reunification 3,373,600 2,380,540

Altemative Family Care 2,83t,473 22.356,793

Temporary places of safety 106,058,053 t34,577,811

OVC Without Families 900,000 2.600.000
Total OVC Expenses 499"5t0,rr2 3E6270474
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Description Land

Kshs

COST

At I July 2021
Additions

Capitalization of
walls
At 30 June 2022

DEPRECIATION

Ar I July 2021

Charge for the year
Ar l0 June 2022
NBV at 30 June 2022 lJ5jljjl"l"Jni

COST

At I July 2022
Additions
At 30 June 2023

DEPRECIATION

At | luly 2027
Charge for the year

t,15t,3t3,276

1J513Ll226

At 30 June 2023

1,1s1,313,276 220j03,683 151,426,465

ufl.3ru?6
26,E70,090

241.l1i.7Ji t5142,6,fi5 19,872J17 7!J72,2,15

Buildings

Kshs

2 1,5 10,005
3,979,874

25,489,879
221.EE:1E94

247,373,773
68,950

241A42J2e

25,489,879
4,947,475

30,437J54

21?-Q05169

Motor vehicles

Kshs

Computens

tr(shs

Furniture and

Equipment

Kshs

Construction in

progress

Kshs

TOTALS

Kshs

rrr,379,23t
10,011,809

121,39t,039
llUE5.:{26

151,426,465

15t426,fi5

tzl,39t,039
9,283,820

130,674,E59

2tu5L606

18,3t6,627
I,5 16, 150

13,233,174
I,525,036

14,758,210

_5,W!,fi7

19,832,777
1,960,3s2

a,Trl,Lr,

t4,758,210
1,818,889

16577,,099

l216rE0

62,201,223
E,570,992

28,168,834
4,254,049

32,422,E83

383193:12

70,772,215
10,748,986

EllillJltl

32,422,883
5,194,927

37,617,810

4:L9utt9t

1,473,374,925
87,581,242

(26,870,090)

15t4Jt[6JU2

rsuJt86,0z

t,534,086,077
13,167,840

1,5!7.?.53,3.77

3,077,136,199
97,668,384

ul4.Ell4s8:t

174,29t,244
t9,770,767

t94,062,009
2,930J_{2,5t4

3, 174,804,583
25,946,128

320[75L711

t94,062,011
21,245,1t1

215307,122

2JE5.{4:15E9NBV at 30 June2022 lJflif:Uff

l9

t5it7,2.57!rn
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I5. INVESTMENTS

16. INVENTORIES

17. RECf,IVABLES

Description 2023-2022 2021-2022

KShs KShs

a) Equity investments (specify)

127,500 Safaricom Limited Shares @KShs.5.00 3,1 8 t ,125 5,208,175

Revaluation (Loss)/surplus as at 30th June (2023:

Kshs 17.50; 2022: Kshs 24.95)
(949,87s) (2,027,250)

Total investments 2231,250 3,181,125

Description 2022-2023 2021-2022

KShs KShs

Consumables: 4.533.643 13ss.000

Paper stationery-fi les, pens, notebooks,printpaper 1,208,2t6

Non-paper stationery-paper trays, pins, clips,etc 650,578

Food items 2,040,139

Soaps and detergents r 65,025

Toiletries 203,107

Baby supplies 266,578

Total inventories at the lower of cost and net

realizable value
4,s33,643 1,355,000

Description 2022-2023 2021-2022

Current receivables KShs KShs

Deposits refundable- Rent, Power, etc 2,t94,413 5,639,069

Social protection Quarter 4 disbursement 233,460,000

Plot debtors 4,978,650 4,978,650

Staff debtors 798,845 20,247,120

Total current receivables 7,971,90E 264,324,839

Less: Provision for Doubtful debts ( r ,000,000)

Total Net Receivables 6,97r,908 264,324,839

20
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Description 2022-2023 2021-2022

KShs KShs

Current account 633,538,266 27t,390,938

Others(Petty cash) I ,71 I ,945 t,632,62t

Total cash and cash

equivalents
63s2s0rlr 273,023,560

18. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

DETAILED ANALYSIS OF THE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2022-2023 2021-2022

Financial

Institutio

n

Account

number
KShs KShs

KCB
Bank HQ

126706943
0

568,628,074 89,029,739

Sidian
(formerly
K-Rep)
Bank(US
D)

100301000
27

3 50,530 205,422

Sidian
(formerly
K-Rep)
Bank(KS
hs)

100302000
57

1,804,802 4.607,422

Bank of
Africa-
ArapMoi
0004

801 3 14000
4

t7,770 l9l

Bank of
Africa-
ArapMoi
0012

801 3 I 5001
2

757 (3,528)

Bank of
Africa
Bungoma
branch

26055 1000

9
9,500 25,070
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(81 ,787)948522934 (88,41 l )
BBK _
CPB

34.5 80948527389 34.580

BBK-
Nanyuki
Children's
Home

I,793,0168l 053979 954,006

BBK.
Kisii
Children
Home

(88,008) (8 r,384)
BBK.
Nanyuki
branch

3080 t 7389

2,749,319 I,901,005BBK
1330

948551330

4,358,966BBK Fin
8484

94t258484 20,460,992

3,340,76094t258468 1.755,011
BBK HQ
8468

4,002,987
BBK
Mama
Ngina

9480031 r 2 |,873,3t2

2,528,856

BBK
Murang'a
n37
(Donation
alc\

2026601t3
7

174,565

139,755,708
BBK TBP
1349

948551349 2t,036,264

3,335 283,81 3

F4uity
Bank
EURO
458

1470262t5
0458

I,448,1 80
Equity-
CWSK-
Kisii 8384

t47026275
8384

8,060

20,7 t6

Equity
Bank-
Bungoma
6992

480299936
992

20,716

521,560

Equity
Bank
(Towa)48
8

150295282
488

10,500

I

I

II
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Equity
Bank A/c
4t6

l 50291898
416

407.332 407,332

Equity
Bank
CESVI
EURO
478

147026215
0478

t7,778 3,01 4,633

Equity
Bank
Developm
ent 4154

147026237
4154

12,481 1,732602

Equity
Bank
KSHS(CE
svr)271

t47026215
0271

3,460,125 1,553,665

Equity
Bank
Murang'a
7226

220299937
226

5',1 15 5 253,595

Equity
bank
supreme
225

1470262t5
0225

475 26,175

88,584
Equity
Bank
USD

150291 898
436

7,758

Equity
OffA/c
458

I 50291 898
458

10,91 5 438,975

Equity
salary
Account -
253

147026215
0253

667,754 667.754

KCB
Bungoma
branch

l12685869
2

r,876,223 t,284,265

NBK
MjiWaSal
atna

103807530
4600

6,t62.934 6.954.314

Standard
Chartered
Mombasa

l , r45,530 1,277 ,225

Total 633,538r66 271J90,938

-
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19. TRUSTEES ACCOUNT

This relates to activities and properties held thereunder which continue to be presided over by the

Trustees for the purpose of generating income for the Society.

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

2T. CASH GENERATf,D FROM OPERATIONS

Description 2022-2023 2021-2022

Trustees Account KShs KShs

Bal B/f 108,053,837 I 08,159,41 7

Trustees Injections/Drawings/Reversals ( l 0s,s80)

Total Trustees Account 108,053,837 108,053,837

Description 2022-2023 2021-2022

KShs KShs

Operations 896,700 19,71 8,619

Staff creditors 8l 8,434

Salary deductions 46,607,392

Total trade and other payables 896,700 67,144,445

2022-2023 2021-2022

Surplus for the year before tax KShs KShs

Surplus for the year before tax 159,435,883 132,820,099

Adjusted for:

Depreciation 2t,245,I I I t9,770,767

Unrealized Lossi(Gain) on Investments 949,875 2,027,250

Finance cost

Increase in inventory (3,l 78,643)

Decrease in receivables 257,352,932 (248,287,944)

lncrease in Trustees account t05,580

lncrease in deferred income

Decrease in payables (66,247,744) (3,442,686)

Increase in payments received in advance

Net cash flow from operating activities 369,557,414 (97,006,934)
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22. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Society's activities expose it to a variety offinancial risks including credit and liquidity
risks and effects of changes in foreign currency. The Society's overall risk management
programme focuses on unpredictability of changes in the business environment and seeks to
minimise the potential adverse effect ofsuch risks on its performance by setting acceptable
levels of risk. The Society does not hedge any risks and has in place policies to ensure that credit
is only extended with an established credit history.
The Society's financial risk management objectives and policies are detailed below:

(i) Credit risk

The Society has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to
pay amounts in full when due. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, and deposits
with banks, as well as trade and other receivables and available-for-sale financial investments

Management assesses the credit quality in each case, taking into account its financial position,
past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on intemal or extemal
assessment in accordance with limits set by the Trustees. The amounts presented in the statement
of financial position are net ofallowances for doubtful receivables, estimated by the Society's
management based on prior experience and their assessment ofthe current economic
environment.

The credit risk associated with these receivables is minimal and the allowance for uncollectible
amounts that the Society has recognised in the financial statements is considered adequate to
cover any potentially irrecoverable amounts.
The Board ofTrustees sets the Society's credit policies and objectives and lays down parameters
within which the various aspects ofcredit risk management are operated.

(ii) Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Society's Trustees, who
have built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the
Society's short, medium and long{erm funding and liquidity management requirements, The
Society manages liquidity risk through continuous monitoring of forecasts and actual cash flows.

(iii) Market risk

The Board of Trustees has put in place an internal audit function to assist it in assessing the risk
faced by the Society on an ongoing basis, evaluate and test the design and effectiveness of its
intemal accounting and operational controls.

Market risk is the risk arising from changes in market prices, such as interest rate, equity prices

and foreign exchange rates. which will affect the Society's income or the value of its holding of
financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market
risk exposures witlrin acceptable parameters, while optimising the retum. Overall responsibility
for managing market risk rests with the Audit Committee.
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The Society's Finance Deparrnent is responsible for the development ofdetailed risk
management policies (subject to review and approval by Audit Committee) and for the day-to-
day implementation of those policies.

There has been no change to the Society's exposure to market risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risk.

23. EYENTS ATTER TIIE REPORTING PERIOD
There were no material adjusting and non-adjusting events after the reporting period.

24. ULTIMATE AI\ID HOLDING ENTITY
The entity is a membership Society under the Society's Act, with an inevocable Trust
incorporated in 1955. It is an approved and an exempt Society. Child Welfare Society of
Kenya is an Agency of the Govemment under the Ministry of Labour and Social Protection.

25. CURRENCY
The financial statements arc pr€sented in Kenya Shillings (KShs).
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APPENDIX l: PROGRESS ON FOLLOW LJP OF AUDITOR
RECOMMENDATIONS
The following is the summary of issues raised by the external auditor, and management comments

that were provided to the auditor. We have nominated focal persons to resolve the various issues

as shown below with the associated time frame within which we expect the issues to be resolved.

Reference

No. on the

external

audit

Report

Issue /

0bservations

from Auditor

MaDrgement

comments

Focal Point

person to

resolve the

issue @{onre

and

designation)

Status:

(Resolved /
Not

Resolved)

Timeframe:

(Pul a dale

when you

eryecl the

issue to be

rcsolved)

1.0
Inaccuracies in
Cash and Cash
Equivaleflts

The Iong outstanding
items revealed in the
bank reconciliation
statements have been
adjusted and cleared.
Dormant bank aacounts
have been activated and
allocated to respective
CWSK branches.

Finance Officer Resolved FN 2022t23

2.0
Long Outsranding
Receivables

The outsta[ding balanc€s
are income generating
activities of sale ofplots
by the Trustees. The title
deeds ofthe plots
allottees are still in
process, thc outslanding
amounts will be

recoYered at the poinl of
title deeds issuance.

CWSK Board of
Trustees

Resolved On-going

I .0 (a)
Non<ompliance
with one-third of
Basic Salary Rule

This was as a result of
Sacco deductions. Jogoo
and Waumini saccos are

independent eotities not
controlled by CWSK and

they do not consult the
Society when they are
giving loans to CWSK
staff.

Finance O{ficer Resolved F/v 2022t23

2.0 (a) Lack ofStalT
Establishment

A detailed staff r€Sister
ofall employees
containing all oftheir
particulars is in place.

Finance Officer Resolved F/Y2022t23

3.0 (a) lncomplete
Building Works

There was lack of
budgeted adequate
fundins.

CWSK Board of
Trustees

Work-in-
Progress

On-going
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I

Reference

No. on the

externsl

audit

Report

Issue /

Observetions

from Auditor

Management

comments

Focal Point

person to

resolve the

issue (Nanre

and

designation)

Status3

(Resolved /
Not

Resolved)

Timeframe:

(Put a date

when you

expect the

issue lo be

resolved)

4.0 (a) Overdrawn
Bank accounts

The 3 bank accounts
were not overdrawn by
cheques payments or
withdrawals. The balancc
of sh. 219,448 relates to
accumulated bank
charges over time as the
bank accounts were not
active then.

Finance Ofnc€r Resolved FN 2022D3

1.0 (b)
Lack of an

Audit
Committee

CWSK Board has put an
Audit Committe€ in
place. An additional
Intemal Auditor to be
added-

CWSK Board of
Trustees

Resolved FN 2022/23

2.0 (b)
Weak Intemal
Audit
Departsnent

CWSK has an Intemal
Auditor. The lnternal
Audit Department is
being strengthened by
additional staff in order
to build its caDscity.

cEo Resolved FN 2022/23

3.0 (b)

Lack of
Approved
Organizational
Structure

CWSK is a membership
soci€ty with an
iEevocable Trust. Its
operations are based on
the Trust Deed. The
approved organization
shucture is now in place

cEo Resolved FtY 2022/23
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Guidance Notes:

(i) Use the same reference numbers as contained in the extemal audit report;

(ii) Obtain the "lssue/Observation" and "management comments", required above, from final

external audit report that is signed by Management;

(iii) Before approving the repo( discuss the timeframe with the appointed Focal Point persons

within your entity responsible for implementation of each issue;

(iv) Indicate the status of "Resolved" or "Not Resolved" by the darc of submicing this report to

National Treasury.

Irene Mureithi
Chief Erecutive Officer/ ManagiEg Trustee
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